
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

Special Presentation Meeting 
Tuesday, April 19, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
 
 
2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATION: 
 
    
 a. R2022-024: A Resolution supporting the South Carolina American Revolution Sestercentennial Commission and 

recognizing and approving the Anderson County 250 Committee; and other matters related thereto. 
 

Hon. Tommy Dunn 
 

  
 b. R2022-025: A Resolution congratulating Split Creek Farm for placing first in the United States and third in the 

World at the World Championship Cheese Contest; and other matters related thereto. 
 

Hon. Brett Sanders 
 

 
 c. R2022-026: A Resolution honoring the life and service of Jacky Hunter; and other matters related thereto. 
 

Hon. Cindy Wilson 
 

 
3. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, April 19, 2022 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, April 19, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER     
 
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                        Hon. Brett Sanders 
 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                                                                                                                April 5, 2022 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Agenda Matters Only 
 
 
5. ORDINANCE THIRD READING:  
 
   a. 2022-004: An Ordinance to amend Section 38-311(C) of the Anderson County, Couth Carolina, Code of 

Ordinances to add an additional subsection to establish a time frame for consideration of previously disapproved 
projects by the Planning Commission; and other matters related thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE 
MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Tommy Dunn (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
  b.  2022-009: An Ordinance to provide for the creation of the River Oaks Special Tax District; to establish the    

nature of services to be performed therein; to designate the uniform service charge in the River Oaks 
subdivision special tax district; to provide for the operation of the River Oaks subdivision special tax district; 
and other matters related thereto.  

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

 c. 2022-011: An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and between 
Anderson County, South Carolina and Kelley Engineering, LLC, formerly known to the County as Project Yell, 
with respect to certain economic development property in the County, whereby such property will be subject to 
certain payments in lieu of taxes including the provision of certain special source credits; and other matters related 
thereto. [Project Yell] (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, April 19, 2022 
 
Page 3 

 

   
 

6. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:  
 
    
   a. 2022-008: An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 

20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 5.39 acres from R-20 (Single 
Family Residential District) to R-10 (Single-Family Residential District) on a parcel of land, identified as 5.39 
acres on Evergreen Road in the North Pointe Precinct shown in Deed Book 15843 page 00246. The parcel is 
further identified as TMS #144-00-06-005. (District 4) (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME 
LIMIT) 

 
Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
  
 
    
 
   b. 2022-013: An Ordinance to amend Chapter 38 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, so 

as to provide for drainage and utility easements to convey stormwater and provide for location of other utilities 
in developments within Anderson County; and other matters related thereto. 

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
   c. 2022-014: An Ordinance to approve a ground lease agreement between Anderson County, South Carolina and 

Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC for a portion of Tax Map No. 122-00-01-001, The Civic Center parcel, for location 
of a battery storage system project; and other matters related matters. 

 
 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 
 
7. ORDINANCE FIRST READING: 
 
   a. 2022-016: An Ordinance authorizing the transfer of real property located at 1299 Three and Twenty Road, 

Easley, South Carolina (TMS NO. 163-00-09-008) to the Three and Twenty Fire Department trustees; and other 
matters related thereto. 

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
 

  b. 2022-017: An Ordinance authorizing the transfer of certain real properties located at 204 West Poplar Street, 
Iva, South Carolina (TMS 133-04-01-003); 57 Oak Street, Iva, South Carolina (TMS 133-02-06-003); and 717 
Central Street, Iva, South Carolina (TMS 134-00-06-017) to the Town of Iva; and other matters related thereto. 
(TITLE ONLY) 

 
 

  Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

   c. 2022-018: An Ordinance to provide approval for Anderson County to grant a perpetual and non-exclusive 
easement unto Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC upon a portion of the real property being Parcel A, 0.192 acres and 
Parcel B, 2.96 acres, as recorded in Plat Slide 1273, pages 5 and 6, Anderson County Register of Deeds for 
electric car charging stations within the City of Belton; and other matters related thereto. (TITLE ONLY) 

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, April 19, 2022 
 
Page 4 

 

   
 

 
 
8. CHANGE ORDER: 
    a. Hurricane Springs Park Improvements 
 
 
9. ROAD ACCEPTANCE INTO COUNTY INVENTORY: 
    a. Barrington Creek Subdivision Phase I & II: (District 6) 
        Barrington Creek Road 
        Burr Oak Lane 
        Wyngate Court           
 
 
 
10. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
     a. Legal advice regarding a road right of way condemnation matter subject to the attorney client privilege 
     b. Council action following executive session 
     
 
 
11. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL:  
     a. Split Creek Farm-District 4  
      b. Rebuild Upstate Volunteer Veteran Support Team-All Districts 
      c. The Zone Service Inc.-All Districts     
 
 
12. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
      a. Budget Transfers 
      b. Paving 
      c. Special Projects 
 
 
13. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Non-Agenda Matters 
 
 
14. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



                                                   RESOLUTION R2022-024 
 
A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE SOUTH CAROLINA AMERICAN 
REVOLUTION SESTERCENTENNIAL COMMISSION AND RECOGNIZING 
AND APPROVING THE ANDERSON COUNTY 250 COMMITTEE; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
WHEREAS, the mission of the South Carolina American Revolution Sestercentennial 
Commission (250th Anniversary Commission, also known as SC250) is to celebrate and 
promote South Carolina’s role in the American Revolution by educating, engaging, and 
inspiring South Carolinians and visitors; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SC250 Commission is seeking partnerships with counties and 
municipalities to further its mission by forming local committees to further its mission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Anderson County 250 Committee will focus on important events, people, 
and places during the Revolutionary Era within Anderson County to promote, observe and 
celebrate Anderson County’s role in the American Revolution by educating, engaging, and 
inspiring South Carolinians and visitors, thereby enhancing historical tourism 
opportunities; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council, in a meeting duly 
assembled this 19th day of April 2022, hereby recognizes the Anderson County 250 
Committee as its official committee, will partner with SC250, and will support initiatives 
of the SC250 Commission, including above-mentioned efforts to enhance historical 
tourism opportunities in Anderson County. 

 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY  ATTEST 
 
 
____________________   ____________________ 
Tommy Dunn     Rusty Burns 
County Council Chairman   County Administrator  
District Five 
 
      ____________________ 
      Renee D. Watts 

Clerk to Council 



 
                                                       RESOLUTION R2022-025 
 
A RESOLUTION CONGRATULATING SPLIT CREEK FARM FOR PLACING FIRST 
IN THE UNITED STATES AND THIRD IN THE WORLD AT THE WORLD 
CHAMPIONSHIP CHEESE CONTEST; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO. 
WHEREAS, Split Creek Farm, a Grade A goat dairy farm located in Anderson County and co-
owned by Jessica Bell and Sandra Coppage, has been producing artisan goat milk products for more 
than 30 years and operates as a true farmstead operation, raising animals on the farm to produce 
the milk used in making products on-site, by hand; and  
 
WHEREAS, the World Championship Cheese Contest, the world’s premier technical cheese, 
butter, and yogurt competition, has been hosted by the Wisconsin Cheese Makers Association 
biennially since 1957, and was most recently held March 1-3, 2022, in Madison, Wisconsin; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the 2022 World Championship Cheese Contest, Split Creek Farm placed first in 
the United States and third in the world, scoring a 99.25 for Feta marinated in Olive Oil with 
Sundried Tomatoes and herbs; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council, in a meeting duly 
assembled this 19th day of April 2022, hereby congratulates Split Creek Farm for its success at the 
World Championship Cheese Contest and thanks them for doing Anderson County, the State of 
South Carolina and the United States proud. 

 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY              ATTEST 
 
________________________   ________________________ 
Brett Sanders     Rusty Burns 
County Council                 County Administrator  
District Four 
 
      ________________________ 
      Renee D. Watts 
                                                                              Clerk to Council 



 
RESOLUTION 2022-026 

A RESOLUTION HONORING THE LIFE AND SERVICE OF 
JACKY HUNTER; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, Anderson County Auditor Jacky Hunter recently departed from this life, 
leaving behind a community of family, friends, and neighbors saddened by his loss; 
and,  

WHEREAS, Jacky was, without a doubt, a true Anderson institution, having served for 
many years as the county’s Election Commission Director and Finance Manager prior to 
assuming elected office; and, 

WHEREAS, no matter what position he held, the citizens of Anderson benefited greatly 
from his sharp financial acumen and intuitive sense for numbers; and  

WHEREAS, Jacky was known by his colleagues for his efforts to provide vigilance and 
oversight on behalf of the taxpayer, for whom he left no stone unturned in his mission to 
ensure accuracy and strict adherence to the laws governing the duties to which he 
had been entrusted; and 

WHEREAS, Jacky will be long and well-remembered by his colleagues and constituents, 
and though he will be missed we take comfort in knowing he has received his Eternal 
Reward; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby celebrates 
the life and service of George Jackson “Jacky” Hunter Jr., a true friend to us all. We 
extend our sympathies to his loving wife Janis and their family, and thank them for 
providing Jacky with the support he needed to serve our community. He will truly be 
missed.  

RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 19th day of April, 2022. 

 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY    ATTEST 
 
____________________    ____________________ 
M. Cindy Wilson     Rusty Burns 
County Council District Seven   County Administrator 
 
       ____________________ 
       Renee Watts 

Clerk to Council 



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY Council
 

COUNTY Council MEETING

APRIL 5, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
GLENN DAVIS
RAY GRAHAM
JIMMY DAVIS
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS
      



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
2 I’d like to call the regular Anderson County Council
3 meeting to order of April 5th, 2022.  I’d like to
4 welcome each and every one of you here tonight.  And
5 thank y’all for coming.  
6 I’d like to start off, if we would, I’ll ask
7 Councilman Ray Graham if he’ll lead us in the
8 invocation and pledge of allegiance.  If we’d all
9 rise, please.
10 RAY GRAHAM:  Let us pray.
11 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY RAY GRAHAM 
12 TOMMY DUNN:   We’ll be
13 moving on now to approval of the minutes of the March
14 1st, 2022 Council meeting.  Are there any corrections
15 to be made to those minutes?  Seeing and hearing
16 none, do we have a motion to move these forward? 
17 Motion by Ms. Wilson to move forward.  Do we have a
18 second?  
19 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
21 Glenn Davis.  All in favor of the motion show of
22 hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
23 unanimously. 
24 Moving on now to approval of the minutes of the
25 March 15th meeting.  Are there any corrections to be
26 made of that meeting?  Hearing none, do we have a
27 motion to move these forward?
28 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion by Ms.
30 Wilson to move forward.  Do we have a second?
31 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
33 Ray Graham.  All in favor of the motion show of
34 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
35 carries unanimously. 
36 We’re going to move on now to item number 4,
37 citizens’ comments.  As Mr. Harmon, our attorney,
38 calls your name, please step forward and for the
39 record state your name and district and address the
40 chair.  The first go-around is on agenda items only. 
41 You’ve got three minutes.  Mr. Harmon.
42 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman,
43 no one is signed up.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
45 Mr. Harmon. 
46 We’re going to move on now to item number 5, a
47 proclamation and resolution designating April 2022 as
48 Fair Housing Month.  And I apologize.  I don’t have
49 that in front of me.  Mr. Graham mind doing that? 
50 This is it right here.  



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
3

1 Proclamation designating April 2022 as Fair
2 Housing Awareness Month in Anderson County.
3 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council desires that
4 all Anderson County citizens be afforded the
5 opportunity to attain a decent, safe, and sound
6 living environment; and
7 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council rejects
8 discrimination on the basis of race, religion, color,
9 sex, national origin, disability, and/or familial
10 status in the sale, rental, or provision of other
11 housing services; and
12 WHEREAS, the State of South Carolina enacted the
13 South Carolina Fair Housing Law in 1989; and
14 WHEREAS, April is recognized nationally as Fair
15 Housing Month;
16 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Anderson
17 County Council does hereby proclaim April 2022 as
18 Fair Housing Month.
19 I put that in the form of a motion.
20 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
22 Sanders.  Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing none,
23 all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
24 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
25 unanimously. 
26 We’re going to move on now to Proclamation (b),
27 2022-023, a resolution declaring April 10th through
28 16th, 2022, as Dispatch Appreciation Week.  This is
29 really coming from all Council members.  Chairman of
30 Public Safety, Mr. Graham, if you want to read this.
31 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you,
32 Mr. Chairman.
33 This is Resolution R2022-023.  This is a
34 resolution declaring April 10th through April 16th
35 National Public Safety Telecommunicators Week in
36 Anderson County; and other matters related thereto.
37 WHEREAS, emergencies can occur at any time that
38 require police, fire or emergency medical services to
39 respond promptly to provide assistance critical to
40 the protection of life and preservation of property;
41 and
42 WHEREAS, the safety of our police officers, fire
43 fighters and EMS is dependent upon the quality of
44 accuracy, of information obtained from citizens who
45 call the Anderson County Unified Emergency
46 Communication Center; and 
47 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Unified Emergency
48 Communication Center has handled all emergencies and
49 non-emergencies, call-taking, dispatching service for
50 Anderson County jurisdictions since late 1999 to



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
4

1 early 2000 when all agencies transitioned over to a
2 consolidated 911 Center, which now consists of sixty-
3 four communications personnel working twelve hour
4 shifts, generally fourteen per shift, working 7:00
5 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m., with an
6 overlapping power shift that works noon to midnight;
7 and
8 WHEREAS, public safety communicators are the
9 first and most critical contact our citizens have
10 with emergency services, serving as a vital link for
11 responders en route and on-scene by monitoring
12 activities by radio, providing information, ensuring
13 safety and contributing substantially to the
14 apprehension of criminals, suppression of fires and
15 treatment of patients, while exhibiting high
16 standards of compassion, understanding and
17 professionalism.
18 THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Anderson
19 County Council, in a meeting duly assembled this 5th
20 day of April, 2022 declares the week of April 10th
21 through April 16th, 2022 to be National Public Safety
22 Telecommunicators Week in Anderson County in honor of
23 the men and women whose diligence and professionalism
24 keep our county and citizens safe.
25 Mr. Chairman, I bring this forth in the form of a
26 motion.
27 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
29 motion Mr. Graham; second Ms. Wilson.  Any
30 discussion?
31 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman?
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir, Mr.
33 Graham.
34 RAY GRAHAM:  You know,
35 this is by far -- this is the first responders.  And
36 Becky, you and your staff, you guys -- I mean we
37 definitely hit the jackpot with y’all.  Y’all do a
38 superb job in handling all of the emergencies that
39 comes in the county.  And I truly mean that.  Y’all
40 are the first responders.  You’re normally the one
41 that makes that first initial communication with that
42 individual, whether it’s a victim of a fire, of EMS,
43 law enforcement, whatever the case might be.  And a
44 lot of times you stay on the phone with them until
45 they get the sense of ease when somebody actually
46 arrives on the scene to help take over that
47 situation.
48 So I mean you’re definitely to be commended.  In
49 my mind, this is -- really it should be communicators
50 years every year.  I mean because it is a job



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
5

1 throughout the year that keeps our system working and
2 flowing like it should.  You’re definitely to be
3 commended, along with your staff, for all that you do
4 and contribute to our system.  Thank you.
5 APPLAUSE 
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else? 
7 I just want to say -- add to this.  I know this is
8 National recognizing week of dispatchers.  But I want
9 you to know Anderson County and Anderson County
10 Council appreciates y’all each and every week and
11 each and every day for the job y’all do.  Y’all -- as
12 Mr. Graham said, y’all are the first in line.  Y’all
13 save lives.  And me being a first responder myself
14 for many years, a dispatcher -- a good dispatcher
15 makes a big difference on the way to a call.  Believe
16 you me.  And I do greatly appreciate it, as this
17 Council does, and the citizens of Anderson County do. 
18 Can’t thank you enough.  But we really do appreciate
19 what y’all do and have done and continue to do
20 sometimes in some very difficult circumstances.  
21 We thank y’all very, very much.
22 CINDY WILSON:  May I, Mr.
23 Chairman?
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
25 CINDY WILSON:  When one
26 calls 911 with something desperate and serious, it
27 seems like seconds or hours.  And I greatly
28 appreciate the professionalism of the wonderful
29 dispatchers.  I have had reason to call in the past
30 and it made things so much more efficient.  And while
31 the outcomes may not have been what we wanted, it
32 wasn’t because of lack of care of our dispatchers. 
33 We appreciate y’all.  Thank you.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else? 
35 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
36 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
37 unanimously. 
38 We would ask y’all to come up front for just a
39 minute and give y’all a little bit of recognition.
40 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION 
41 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going
42 to move on now to item number 6.  This is a report
43 from the Planning and Public Works Committee meeting
44 held on March 18.  Chairman lady Ms. Wilson.  Ms.
45 Wilson.
46 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you,
47 Mr. Chairman.  We covered several pressing matters
48 for our Anderson County Land Use considerations.  We
49 had county staff, Mr. Brett Sanders, Mr. Jimmy Davis
50 and I were joined by our Western Upstate Association



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
6

1 of Realtors representative, Mr. Cooper.  We had a
2 representative from Liberty Homes.  And our traffic
3 engineer, Mrs. Gaye Sprague.  
4 Item one was a review of recommendations for
5 requiring that developments which are approved with
6 amenities packages must complete the amenities as
7 approved.  It was recently brought to our county’s
8 attention that developments that had been approved
9 with amenities packages were being sold and the new
10 developers had no intention of honoring what had been
11 sanctioned.  Our county attorney Mr. Harmon and Mr.
12 John Caime will provide an ordinance proposal for our
13 next Planning and Public Works Committee meeting in
14 hopes to plug this loophole.
15 Item two, we had further discussion of Ordinance
16 2022-006 pertaining to Planning Commission approval
17 of certain dwelling units.  It was believed that the
18 existing language and any proposed clarifying
19 language would actually create further untenable
20 issues.  At this point, this ordinance is stopped.
21 Item three is on our agenda tonight for first
22 reading as Ordinance 2022-013 pertaining to private
23 drainage and utility easements that are intended to
24 alleviate flooding between developments and
25 properties.  Our committee approved this proposal
26 three and zero for your consideration under 9(c),
27 which we will do later in the meeting.
28 Item four was a review and discussion of a
29 performance standard zoning concept that has been
30 implemented to great success in Spartanburg County
31 and may prove helpful here.  Performance zoning
32 differs from traditional Euclidean zoning, which
33 originated in 1926 in the Village of Euclid, Ohio as
34 a local government land use tool.  We currently have
35 a similar model in Anderson County which the county
36 imposes on a precinct by precinct basis at the
37 request of the majority of the voters in that
38 precinct after a process that includes land use
39 considerations based on the county comprehensive land
40 use map and plan and landowner desires.  
41 The work of performance standard zoning begins
42 with the creation of a road classification plan which
43 categorizes all roads as an arterial, a collector or
44 a local road.  Anderson County already has this
45 requirement met.  There is much more to learn and we
46 will continue our education as we look to a fast-
47 growing future and hopefully providing a clearer
48 picture of the role of the county -- the county’s
49 place in land use decisions.  
50 Do my fellow committee members have anything they



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
7

1 would like to add?
2 We want to thank all who participated in the
3 meeting.  It made for a very interesting and
4 productive meeting.  And we’ll plan another meeting
5 soon.  Thank you.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
7 Ms. Wilson.
8 Moving on now to item number 7(a), third reading. 
9 7(a), 2022-007, an Ordinance to amend an agreement
10 for the development of a joint county industrial and
11 business park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville
12 Counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters
13 related thereto.
14 Do we have a motion to put this on -- and it’s
15 Project Leaf.  Do we have a motion to put this on the
16 floor?
17 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
19 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
20 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
22 Glenn Davis.  Now open the floor up for discussion. 
23 Mr. Nelson, do you have anything you want to add to
24 this?
25 BURRISS NELSON:  Just that
26 this is a courtesy that we offer to Greenville and
27 they offer us the same courtesy, to allow them to get
28 state benefits and incentives.  Thank you, sir.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
30 All in -- anyone else have anything?  All in favor of
31 the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.   Show
32 the motion carries unanimously. 
33 We’re going to move on now to item number 8(a),
34 ordinance second reading, 2022-009, an Ordinance to
35 provide for the creation of the River Oaks Special
36 Tax District; to establish the nature of services to
37 be performed therein; to designate the uniform
38 service charge in the River Oaks subdivision special
39 tax district; to provide for the operation of the
40 River Oaks subdivision special tax district; and
41 other matters related thereto. 
42 This is a matter to bring their roads up to
43 standard.  They have to have a petition and I think
44 the signature of seventy-five percent of the property
45 owners in that district to get this in.  And be
46 getting a bond where they can bring the roads up and
47 pay for it.  This is the level they pay it back,
48 special tax district to pay the bond off.  
49 We’ll be going into a public hearing.  I just
50 wanted to explain a little bit about what that is if



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
8

1 they didn’t know.  Be a public hearing on that. 
2 Anyone wishing to speak to this matter, please step
3 forward and state your name and district and address
4 the chair, please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and
5 hearing none, the public hearing will be closed.  Do
6 we have a motion to move this forward?
7 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
8 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
10 Sanders; and second by Ms. Wilson.  Are there any
11 discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of
12 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
13 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
14 We’re going to move on now to item number 8(b)
15 2022-010, an Ordinance authorizing, pursuant to Title
16 4 Chapter 1 and 29 and Title 12, Chapter 44 of the
17 Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, the
18 execution and delivery of a fee agreement between
19 Anderson County, South Carolina and [to be inserted
20 before third reading, the name] and [to be inserted
21 before third reading] in connection with a new
22 facility in Anderson County (The “Project”); the
23 provision by the County of certain other support of
24 the project; and other matters related thereto.  This
25 is Project Lifeboat.  Mr. Nelson.
26 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman,
27 I appreciate the opportunity to bring this to Council
28 floor, as well as other Council members, thank you. 
29 This is a new project.  And in my notes for you I
30 have it listed as expansion.  It is a new project.  A
31 research and development company creating fifty jobs,
32 investing twenty million dollars in capital
33 investment, but paying an average wage of forty-two
34 dollars an hour.  This is a project that is one-of-a-
35 kind for us and really a great opportunity.
36 The first year -- first five years of community
37 impact, seventeen million dollars.  The thirty year
38 community impact is a hundred and seventy-eight
39 million dollars.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
41 Mr. Nelson.  Do we have a motion to move this
42 forward?
43 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
44 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
46 Jimmy Davis; second Mr. Sanders.  Are there any
47 discussion?
48 CINDY WILSON:  May I, Mr.
49 Chairman?
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
9

1 CINDY WILSON:  Just a quick
2 note.  The taxes paid in 2021 on this property was
3 sixteen dollars and sixty-three cents.  Projected new
4 taxes, even with fee in lieu of taxes, would be
5 fourteen thousand five hundred and sixty-one dollars. 
6 And that added to an incredible salary and benefits
7 package makes this very appealing; doesn’t it?
8 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, ma’am.
9 CINDY WILSON:  All but their
10 page eighteen, force majeure stuff.
11 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, ma’am.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
13 Ms. Wilson.  Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion
14 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
15 motion carries unanimously. 
16 We’re going to move on now to item number 8(c), 
17 2022-011, an Ordinance authorizing the execution and
18 delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and
19 between Anderson County, South Carolina and a company
20 or companies known to the County at this time as
21 Project Yell with respect to certain economic
22 development property in the County, whereby such
23 property will be subject to certain payments in lieu
24 of taxes including the provision of certain special
25 source credits; and other matters related thereto. 
26 Again, Project Yell.  Mr. Nelson.
27 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you,
28 Mr. Chairman, members of Council.  This is an
29 existing industry expanding, adding eighty new jobs
30 in machine tool technology with an average pay of
31 twenty-two dollars and sixty-four cents an hour,
32 adding 3.6 million dollars in average -- in annual
33 payroll.  This is a fee request, six percent
34 assessment ratio, with a sixty percent SSRC for years
35 one through five, forty percent for years six through
36 ten.  
37 The first year community impact for this project,
38 thirty-three million dollars.  The thirty year
39 community impact is a hundred and nineteen million
40 dollars.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
42 Mr. Nelson.  Do we have a motion to move this
43 forward?  
44 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
46 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
47 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
49 Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing
50 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
10

1 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
2 unanimously. 
3 We’re going to move on now to item number 9(a),
4 ordinance’s first reading, 2022-008, an Ordinance to
5 amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning
6 Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the
7 Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/-
8 5.39 acres from R-20 (Single Family Residential
9 District) to R-10 (Single-Family Residential
10 District) on a parcel of land identified as 5.39
11 acres on Evergreen Road in the North Pointe Precinct
12 shown in Deed Book 15843 page 00246.  The parcel is
13 further identified as TMS #144-00-06-005.  This will
14 be in District 4.  Do we have a motion to move this
15 forward?
16 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion by Mr.
18 Sanders.  Do we have a second?
19 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr.
21 John Wright.  Any discussion?
22 BRETT SANDERS:  Mr. Chairman?
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir, Mr.
24 Sanders.
25 BRETT SANDERS:  This project,
26 I had talked with Ms. Hunter and they supported the
27 project.  I also talked with some people in the area. 
28 I’ve not had any complaints against it.  I know the
29 developer actually went out and met with some of the
30 people that had concerns and showed renderings and
31 drawings.  And I am in full support of this project.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
33 Mr. Sanders.  Ms. Hunter, do you have anything you
34 want to add?  You fine?  Okay.  
35 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you,
36 Ms. Hunter, for your help, too.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Any more
38 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of
39 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
40 carries unanimously. 
41 We’re going to be moving on to item number 9(b), 
42 2022-012, an Ordinance authorizing (1) the execution
43 and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax and incentive
44 agreement by and between Anderson County, South
45 Carolina (“The County”) and one or more companies
46 collectively identified for the time being as Project
47 81 Logistics, acting for itself or themselves, one or
48 more affiliates, and/or other project sponsors
49 (collectively, the “Company”), pursuant to which the
50 County shall covenant to accept certain negotiated



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
11

1 fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to the
2 establishment and/or expansion of certain facilities
3 in the County (The “Project”); (2) the benefits of a
4 multi-county industrial or business park to be made
5 available to the company and the project and the
6 distribution of revenues generated from the project
7 with the County; (3) certain special source revenue
8 credits in connection with the project; and (4) other
9 matters related thereto.  And this is in title only
10 tonight on first reading.  Mr. Nelson.
11 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman,
12 members of Council, and I beg Council’s indulgence
13 for bringing this as a title only.  However, the
14 inducement resolution that we’ll cover in just a few
15 minutes gives a full explanation or summary of the
16 fee project.  This is a project creating twelve jobs
17 with an average pay of twenty-eight forty-three an
18 hour.  And is investing forty-five million dollars. 
19 This is an international logistics company with over
20 a million employees worldwide.  This project in the
21 first year brings 7.8 million in community impact and
22 thirty year community impact of forty-one million.  
23 I thank you for your consideration of this
24 project.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
26 Mr. Nelson.  Do we have a motion to move this
27 forward? 
28 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
30 Glenn Davis.  Do we have a second?
31 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
33 Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing
34 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
35 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
36 unanimously. 
37 We’re going to move on to item number (c), 9(c), 
38 2022-013, an Ordinance to amend Chapter 38 of the
39 Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina,
40 so as to provide for drainage and utility easements
41 to convey stormwater and provide for location of
42 other utilities in developments within Anderson
43 County; and other matters related thereto.
44 At this time, Ms. Wilson has the floor.
45 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you,
46 Mr. Chairman.  I think it would be wise to read this
47 because it’s kind of confusing in the title.  
48 But this provides a more systematic approach and
49 desirable for providing for appropriate conveyance of
50 stormwater and the location of utility systems within



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
12

1 developments located in the county.  This amends
2 Anderson County Code Chapter 38 so as to
3 appropriately provide for the stormwater conveyance
4 and location of other utilities within developments
5 within the county.  
6 It is now recommended that we amend by adding
7 sections to be number 38-360 and 38-361, which
8 seconds read as follows:  
9 Section 38-360, drainage and utility easements.
10 (a) The width length and location of all
11 easements for drainage and utilities shall be
12 established by the appropriate agency involved and
13 shown on the final plat.
14 (b) A five-foot drainage utility easement is
15 required on each side of all interior and rear lot
16 lines.  A ten-foot drainage and utility easement is
17 required along all exterior lot lines.  If an
18 adjoining subdivision has already dedicated a rear
19 five-foot easement, the ten-foot easement may be
20 reduced to five feet.  
21 (c) An easement acts as a reciprocal agreement
22 between the subdivision property owners.  Each
23 property owner is responsible for maintaining such
24 easement on the property.  Drainage and utility
25 easements are intended to be reciprocal easements
26 among the subdivision property owners and not a
27 dedication to the county.  Property owners are
28 responsible for keeping easements intact and clear of
29 debris or structures.  Easements should not be
30 altered in any manner.  
31 Section 38-361, conveyance system.  
32 (a) Offsite stormwater that flows through a
33 proposed subdivision must be routed through a design
34 conveyance system with the designated easement
35 preferably through a common area.  
36 (b) Internal conveyance systems must also be
37 within a designated easement or common area.
38 (c) The conveyance system easements are intended
39 to be reciprocal easements and not a dedication to
40 the county.
41 2. That section 38-332(4) of the Code of
42 Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, is
43 hereby amended to read as follows:
44 Section 38-332, Final Plat.
45 All final plats submitted for approval must
46 contain, in addition to all requirements for
47 preliminary plats, the following information:
48 (4) In the absence of a specific engineering
49 stormwater plan as a minimum, five-foot drainage and
50 utility easements shall be established along all side



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
13

1 and interior rear property lines; ten-foot easements
2 established along exterior boundary of the
3 subdivision unless adjoining property owners have
4 established easements.
5 And that is the body of what’s being proposed
6 here.  And this is to hopefully avoid the massive
7 flooding issues that we’ve had in the county.  
8 And I had a client from Houston not long ago
9 moving here and he was complaining about all the
10 flooding in Houston.  He said every time a new
11 development came in, the old one got flooded.  It’s
12 something that’s avoidable if we use commonsense.  So
13 I hope this will be pointing us in the right
14 direction.  Thank you.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
16 Mr. Harmon, have you got anything you want to add to
17 this?
18 LEON HARMON:  No, Mr.
19 Chairman, not unless someone has a question.  I’ll be
20 glad to speak to that.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Good.  Let’s
22 put this on the floor first.  Do we have a motion to
23 move this forward?
24 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
26 Jimmy Davis; second Mr. Sanders.  Now the floor --
27 the chair recognizes Mr. Sanders.  Mr. Sanders.
28 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you,
29 Mr. Chairman.  Not only will this help with some of
30 those matters, but Mr. Harmon, you may can clarify
31 this for me and everyone else, but this will be
32 recorded on the plat.  So I know that I’ve had some
33 constituents that buy a lot with unsuspected water
34 flows in a bad area.  So this will be on the plat. 
35 But it will also help protect the home buyers, as
36 well.  So I think this is a good thing.
37 LEON HARMON:  Yes, Mr.
38 Sanders, it would be recorded on the plat.
39 BRETT SANDERS:  Okay.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   One thing
41 along those lines.  I think the biggest thing we have
42 and I know Mr. Hogan is here tonight, and if he wants
43 to speak to this, fine.  If not, fine, too.  But I
44 know I’ve had him look at several, several situations
45 in existing subdivisions where some neighbor will go
46 out there and water goes that way, it’s draining that
47 way, it’s designed to go that way, but some neighbor
48 will go out there and either plant a tree, pile a
49 dirt or something another and dam water up on
50 something and mess the whole thing up.  That one



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
14

1 neighbor messed twenty lots up.  And this will give
2 them a little bit of teeth to -- a little bit better
3 teeth to get something to do something another about.
4 Appreciate the work on this, everybody working on
5 this and getting it through.  And it’s my
6 understanding this was a team effort in the county as
7 far as getting this done.  I know Mr. Hogan had a
8 part in it.  I know John Batson had a part in it. 
9 John Caime had a part in it.  I’m sure Ms. Hunter
10 did.  Mr. Harmon did.  And this committee did.  I
11 just appreciate what all y’all have done on this. 
12 Anyone else?
13 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman?
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Wright.
15 JOHN WRIGHT:  This is
16 probably the number one thing that I deal with in my
17 district is the flooding issue.  So I appreciate the
18 committee’s work, along with the staff, to work on
19 this.  Because what I have informed my constituents
20 is we can’t control what the standards were fifteen,
21 twenty, thirty years ago before a lot of these things
22 were even put in place.  But we can control what we
23 do moving forward.  
24 So, Ms. Wilson, I appreciate you and your
25 committee doing this. 
26 I did have just one question about the language. 
27 I saw this and I pulled it up because I couldn’t
28 remember exactly how it reads.  In the absence of a
29 specific engineering stormwater plan as a minimum ... 
30 I’m just curious, what would be the instance where
31 they would not be required to have a stormwater plan? 
32 LEON HARMON:  It might be
33 an instance, Mr. Wright, where a summary plat was
34 done.
35 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.
36 LEON HARMON:  And we may
37 not have a full blown stormwater plan for seven or
38 fewer lots.  Otherwise, they should have stormwater
39 plans.
40 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.  Thank
41 you.  I think that’s ---
42 LEON HARMON:  And that’s
43 also directed, Mr. Wright, if I may interrupt you, to
44 -- there may be circumstances where there need to be
45 larger easements ---
46 JOHN WRIGHT:  Right.
47 LEON HARMON:  --- than the
48 five-foot drainage easements or ten-foot along
49 property lines.  And that would allow -- if the
50 stormwater plan indicates a need for a larger ---



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
15

1 JOHN WRIGHT:  Then it could
2 be even bigger.
3 LEON HARMON:  It would be a
4 larger easement.
5 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.  Thank
6 you, Mr. Harmon.  
7 Mr. Chairman, I know you deal with this on a
8 daily basis, but I think a lot of times people get so
9 infatuated with the building materials of the
10 vertical construction they neglect the horizontal
11 development piece.  And that’s absolutely every bit
12 as much important when it comes to things like
13 flooding and other issues.  So I’m glad we’re
14 addressing this.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Wright,
16 you’re exactly right.  I’m not going to name no names
17 where this is at, but there’s a situation right now
18 with people complaining.  And they’re having a hard
19 time with some flooding.  But right behind their
20 house is a manhole sticking out of the ground over
21 six foot.  They ought to know why that manhole is out
22 of the ground six foot.  There’s a reason for that.
23 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?
25 CINDY WILSON:  May I, just
26 very quickly ---
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, Ms.
28 Wilson.
29 CINDY WILSON:  --- thank
30 everyone, because this was a vast team effort with
31 all the expertise of the -- at the county’s disposal
32 and everyone working hard to try and come up with
33 something workable.  Thank you.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all. 
35 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
36 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
37 unanimously. 
38 We’re going to move on now to item number (d), 
39 2022-014, an Ordinance to approve a ground lease
40 agreement between Anderson County, South Carolina and
41 Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC for a portion of Tax Map
42 No. 122-00-01-001, the Civic Center parcel, for
43 location of a battery storage system project; and
44 other matters related matters.
45 I’m going to let -- if you would, Mr. Burns, do
46 you want to touch base on this?
47 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
48 sometime ago the Anderson County Council voted to
49 allow Duke Energy to put an emergency backup battery
50 for our Civic Center project.  And the lease has



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
16

1 expired and we just want to renew that lease so they
2 can continue with this process.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
4 Mr. Burns.  Do we have a motion to move this forward? 
5 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
6 RAY GRAHAM:  So moved.
7 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion by Mr.
9 Jimmy Davis; second by Ray Graham.  And I also want
10 to just recognize Ms. Emily Roberts from Duke Energy
11 is here tonight.  Ms. Roberts, we appreciate you and
12 thank you for being here.  Do you have anything?  You
13 good?  Thank you.  Anyone have any discussion? 
14 Hearing and seeing none, all in favor of the motion
15 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
16 motion carries unanimously. 
17 Thank you.
18 We’re going to move on now to item number 10. 
19 These are going to be resolutions.  This is item
20 number 10(a), R2022-020, a Resolution expressing
21 intent to cease County maintenance on and to
22 authorize County consent to judicial abandonment and
23 closure of Walter Chamblee Road designated as
24 C-09-0281; and other matters related thereto.
25 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
26 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
27 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
29 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Now discussion.  
30 Mr. Hogan, do you have anything you want to add
31 or say?  
32 MATT HOGAN:  Not really. 
33 I think we’ve already spoke about this.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Yeah, this is
35 in District 5.  I know this ---
36 MATT HOGAN:  Dead-end
37 road.  The property owner on both side owns both. 
38 There’s criminal type activity going on, so they’re
39 wanting to just abandon it.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   And you ain’t
41 had no complaints?
42 MATT HOGAN:  No
43 complaints.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   This is
45 really a -- this road was put in probably fifty or
46 more years ago and it was more or less a private
47 driveway why it was done years ago, back under the
48 Supervisor form of government, I imagine.  Anybody
49 got anything else?  All in favor of the motion show
50 of hands.  All opposed like sign. 



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
17

1 Thank you very much, Matt.  Appreciate it.  Thank
2 y’all.
3 We’re going to move on now to Resolution 10(b). 
4 This will be R2022-021, a Resolution authorizing and
5 approving the assignment and assumption of (I) an
6 existing fee in lieu of tax and incentive agreement,
7 and (II) an existing special source revenue credit
8 agreement, each by and between Anderson County, South
9 Carolina and ABB Motors and Mechanical INC. (F/K/A
10 Baldor Electric Company); and other matters related
11 thereto.
12 Mr. Nelson.
13 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you,
14 Mr. Chairman, members of Council.  This resolution
15 captures a FILOT document that was not included in
16 the Council proceedings back in October and November
17 of 2021 when we did Project Stingray, which was
18 AB/ABB Baldor and they sold out to Dodge Mechanical. 
19 This simply captures that document and puts it in the
20 proper place within their agreement in the purchase
21 agreement.  This comes to Council.  Thank you so much
22 for giving it consideration.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
24 Mr. Nelson.  Do we have a motion to move this
25 forward?  
26 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
28 Wilson; second Mr. Graham.  Any discussion?  Seeing
29 and hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of
30 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
31 carries unanimously. 
32 We’re going to move on to item number 10(c),
33 Resolution R2022-022, a Resolution authorizing (1)
34 The execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax
35 and incentive agreement by and between Anderson
36 County, South Carolina (The “County”) and one or more
37 companies collectively identified for the time being
38 as Project Highway 81 Logistics, acting for itself or
39 themselves, one of more affiliates, and/or other
40 project sponsors (collectively, the “Company”),
41 pursuant to which the County shall covenant to accept
42 certain negotiated fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes
43 with respect to the establishment and/or expansion of
44 certain facilities in the County(the “Project”); (2)
45 The benefits of a multi-county industrial or business
46 park to be made available to the company and the
47 project; (3) Certain special source revenue credits
48 in connection with the project; and (4) Other matters
49 related thereto.
50 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman,



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
18

1 members of Council, thank you again.  This project 81
2 Logistics, eighty-five million in capital investment,
3 twelve jobs with an average pay of twenty-eight
4 dollars and forty-three cents an hour.  It is a six
5 percent assessment request and a thirty year term
6 with a fifty percent SSRC for years one through five,
7 forty percent for years six through fifteen.  This
8 with a community impact, years one through five of
9 7.8 million and thirty year community impact of
10 forty-one million.  Thank you for giving
11 consideration.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
13 Mr. Nelson.  Do we have a motion to move this
14 forward? 
15 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
17 Wilson.  Have a second?
18 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
20 Brett Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
21 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
22 the motion carries unanimously. 
23 We’re going to move on to item number 11, road
24 acceptance ---
25 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
27 Mr. Nelson.  Appreciate you and your team and what
28 all y’all do.
29 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you,
30 sir.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to
32 item number 11(a), road acceptance into the county
33 inventory.  (a) will be Parkview Glen Subdivision
34 Phase I, Walking Stick Way.  This will be District 6,
35 Mr. Jimmy Davis’s district.  Do we have a motion to
36 move this forward? 
37 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
38 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
40 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
41 JIMMY DAVIS:  We good?  I’m
42 good.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   That’s good. 
44 Any more discussion?  All in favor of the motion show
45 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
46 carries unanimously.
47 We’re going to move on -- and that also included
48 Fox Hollow Lane on that.
49 Moving on to item number 12, approval for paving
50 for Hamlin Road and the Meadows Subdivision with



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
19

1 Anderson County Transportation, be the C-funds we
2 call them.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
3 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
5 Jimmy Davis.  Do we have a second?
6 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Brett
8 Sanders.  Any discussion?
9 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair?
10 TOMMY DUNN:   You got
11 anything you’d like to say or add?  Okay.
12 Mr. Davis, Mr. Jimmy Davis.
13 JIMMY DAVIS:  I was told by
14 an unnamed county employee here recently that Hamlin
15 Road is the worst shape road we have in Anderson
16 County.  And if you don’t know where that’s at, there
17 is a C&D Landfill of much debate on that road, as
18 well.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Me and Ms.
20 Wilson knows it well; don’t we, Ms. Wilson?
21 JIMMY DAVIS:  So the
22 residents out there will be extremely happy to see
23 this going forward.  Thank you.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
25 BRETT SANDERS:  I’d like to
26 also thank Mr. Hogan for going out and thank our
27 Administrator for helping me to navigate it.  I
28 appreciate you guys.  Thank you.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all. 
30 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion show of
31 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
32 carries unanimously. 
33 We’re going to move on now to item number 13. 
34 This is approval of updates to the Anderson County
35 Emergency Operations Plan.  Again, turn this over to
36 Chairman of our Public Safety Committee, Chairman
37 Graham.
38 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you,
39 Mr. Chairman.  Our Director, Josh Hawkins, is here as
40 well for any -- if there’s any questions.  Basically
41 all this is is just updating Anderson County
42 Emergency Operations Plans.  A lot of it is nothing
43 more than title changes.  Some of the people that
44 gets copied as far as on the information in the event
45 of something taking place.  All this stuff should
46 have been emailed out to all Council.  But basically
47 it’s just ensuring all the names and particulars is
48 up to date.  And it’s required that this takes place
49 every so often to ensure that we’re in compliance
50 with that.  



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
20

1 Mr. Hawkins, again, is here, the Director of
2 Emergency Services.  So if there’s any questions,
3 please feel free to call on him.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a
5 motion to move this forward? 
6 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
8 Sanders.
9 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
11 Ray Graham.  Now discussion.  Mr. Hawkins, do you
12 have anything you want to add or say on this matter?
13 JOSH HAWKINS:  No, sir.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   We appreciate
15 all the hard work you do on this.  We know you’re a
16 little shorthanded right now and we appreciate what
17 all you’re doing for us.
18 JOSH HAWKINS:  Yes, sir.
19 Thank you.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
21 Anybody got anything else?  
22 I just want to say along these lines, the average
23 citizen don’t know nothing about this, but this is a
24 very important document.  And it’s also very
25 important -- our Emergency Preparedness Director does
26 more than just sit by waiting on a storm to come in. 
27 We really do appreciate them.  We’ve had some good
28 directors in the past and I think Mr. Hawkins is
29 doing the job very, very well and do appreciate the
30 job you and your staff and your team do every day. 
31 You go beyond the call of duty.  I know you’re
32 working very hard.  I mean it just goes on and on
33 what all you do from drownings to helping out at
34 Green Pond.  And just on and on and on.  And we
35 really do appreciate what you do, you and your team. 
36 And hopefully get you some help very soon.  Okay?
37 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman?
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.
39 RAY GRAHAM:  I just want
40 to kind of piggyback off that as well.  You know,
41 Josh drives a big vehicle, not to carry all the
42 equipment but to carry all of his hats, because he
43 does wear multiple hats throughout the county.  And
44 always has.  Even before he became Director.  I mean,
45 he has always been very active in pretty much
46 everything.  And somehow keeps peace at home.  So I
47 mean, you’ve got a fine wife, as well.  I know her
48 family.  But truly, we do appreciate everything you
49 guys are doing.  Hopefully this coming week, we’re
50 going to get you some help.  They are -- have been



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
21

1 understaffed out there and we’re working on getting
2 that position filled.  But he has got a remarkable
3 team.  And they do, they truly have to wear so many
4 hats.  And it’s almost a situation if the need is
5 there, they’re going to be there.  It doesn’t matter
6 what it is.  I mean, they’re going to be there to
7 assist.  So definitely commend you guys for
8 everything you guys do.  Thank you so much, Director.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
10 Any more discussion?  All in favor of the motion show
11 of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion
12 carries unanimously. 
13 Thank you.  Appreciate it.
14 We’re going to move on now to item number 14,
15 appointments.  Who wants to nominate Mr. Merritt for
16 the Anderson County Museum.
17 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Davis,
19 Jimmy Davis.
20 JIMMY DAVIS:  It is my
21 honor and privilege to nominate Mr. Butch Merritt,
22 who is a long time family friend and great resident
23 and lifelong resident of Anderson County, to the
24 Anderson County Museum Board.  I make that in the
25 form of a motion.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
27 motion.  Do we have a second?
28 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
30 Sanders.  Any further discussion?  All in favor of
31 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  
32 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, if
33 I may?
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir, Mr.
35 Davis.
36 JIMMY DAVIS:  It is my
37 honor tonight to nominate Ms. Kathy Parris to the
38 Anderson/Oconee Behavioral Health Board.  And I make
39 that in the form of a motion.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
41 motion by Mr. Davis, Jimmy Davis.  Do we have a
42 second?
43 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
45 Cindy Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
46 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
47 the motion carries unanimously. 
48 Does anyone else have any appointments that come
49 in?  
50 Moving on to item number 15, vehicle donation. 



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
22

1 Mr. Burns.
2 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
3 we have received a request from the town of
4 Williamston for a donation of a sheriff’s animal
5 control unit.  And we received a request from the
6 Honea Path Fire Department, a donation of a pickup. 
7 Both of these items were scheduled for sale.  And we
8 would like to offer these to those two town to help
9 them save tax money.  They’re Anderson County
10 residents also.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a
12 motion to move this forward?
13 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
14 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
16 Wilson; second Mr. Graham.  Is that right?  
17 RAY GRAHAM:  Yes, sir.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Any
19 discussion?  We want to make sure we get Mr. Doc
20 Smith, the Chief down there, him a vehicle, what you
21 call it, and take care of it.  Anybody need anything
22 else.  All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
23 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
24 unanimously. 
25 We’re going to move on now to item number 16,
26 requests from Council members.  Mr. Jimmy Davis.
27 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair,
28 District 6 would like to allocate five hundred
29 dollars to the Cancer Association of Anderson.  Make
30 that in the form of a motion.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
32 motion Mr. Jimmy Davis.  Second Ms. Wilson.  Any
33 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of
34 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
35 carries unanimously. 
36 Moving on now to Councilman Sanders.  Mr.
37 Sanders.
38 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you,
39 Mr. Chairman.  Out of my rec account, I would like to
40 appropriate two thousand dollars to the Cancer
41 Association of Anderson.  
42 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
43 motion by Mr. Sanders.  Have a second?
44 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
46 Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of Mr.
47 Sanders’ motion show of hands.  All opposed like
48 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
49 Moving on to Mr. Glenn Davis.  Mr. Davis.
50 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you,



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
23

1 Mr. Chairman. 
2 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.
3 GLENN DAVIS:  I’d also like
4 to donate five thousand to Cancer Association of
5 Anderson.  I was down there two weeks ago and they
6 were telling me they had an additional sixty-one
7 patients that they were seeing that month.  They are
8 doing an outstanding job for Anderson County.  
9 And while I’m appropriating, will it be all right
10 if I do Anderson Pregnancy Care, as well?
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.
12 GLENN DAVIS:  I’d also like
13 to do fifteen hundred dollars to Anderson Pregnancy
14 Care.  
15 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
16 motion ---
17 GLENN DAVIS:  Put that in
18 the form of a motion.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
20 motion Mr. Glenn Davis.  We have a second by Ms.
21 Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
22 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  
23 Mr. Ray Graham.
24 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you,
25 Mr. Chairman.  I’d like to do both at the same time
26 if that’s okay.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.
28 RAY GRAHAM:  I’d like to
29 do a thousand dollars to the Cancer Association of
30 Anderson and fifteen hundred dollars to Anderson
31 Pregnancy Care.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
33 motion by Mr. Graham.  Do we have a second?
34 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
36 Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
37 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
38 the motion carries unanimously. 
39 Moving on, Mr. John Wright.  Councilman Wright.
40 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you,
41 Mr. Chairman.  From District 1's special rec account,
42 I’d like to appropriate fifteen hundred dollars to
43 the Cancer Association of Anderson.  I put that in
44 the form of a motion.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
46 motion Mr. Wright and second Ms. Wilson.  Any
47 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of
48 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
49 carries unanimously.
50 Ms. Wilson.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
24

1 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you,
2 Mr. Chairman.  The town of Honea Path Watkins School
3 has requested funding and they will clean the total
4 out of our little account.  But may we appropriate a
5 thousand dollars to the Watkins School family
6 education effort.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson
8 makes a motion of a thousand dollars out of her
9 special appropriation account to the Honea Path
10 Watkins Glen (verbatim).  Do we have a second?
11 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
13 John Wright.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
14 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
15 the motion carries unanimously. 
16 District 5 would like to donate five hundred
17 dollars out of its special appropriations account to
18 the Anderson County Cancer Association.  Put that in
19 the form of a motion.
20 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
21 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
23 John Wright.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
24 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
25 the motion carries unanimously. 
26 We’re going to move on now to -- anybody have
27 anything else?  We’re going to move on now to
28 Administrator’s report.
29 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
30 the only thing is to give you an update on where we
31 are on the budget.  We have received 99.9 percent of
32 all the requests from the departments.  We’re going
33 through there.  We are also dealing with the
34 situation that -- unfortunate situation of Mr. Hunter
35 passing away and us having the gap in the auditor’s
36 office at the current time.  And we are also looking
37 to get the estimates on how much money we’re going to
38 have in early May.  So that’s exactly where we are,
39 but I can assure you that we’re working on the budget
40 and working on it diligently, and we will be
41 contacting members of Council individually and as a
42 group to go through it.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   And I just
44 would like to add to that.  I’m sure the Chairman of
45 the Finance Committee, y’all are working hand-in-hand
46 with him, I’m sure.
47 RUSTY BURNS:  He’s already
48 calling people, Mr. Sanders is.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   I know he is. 
50 Just wanted to throw that out there.  Anything else,



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
25

1 Mr. Burns?
2 RUSTY BURNS:  No, sir.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
4 We’re going to move on now to citizens’ comments. 
5 When Mr. Harmon calls your name, please, again, for
6 the record, state your name and district for the
7 record and address the chair.  And you’ve got three
8 minutes.  Mr. Harmon.
9 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman,
10 no one is signed up.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
12 Mr. Harmon.  
13 We’re going to move on now to remarks from
14 Council members.  Ms. Wilson.
15 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you,
16 Mr. Chairman.  We did have a very interesting meeting
17 with SCDOT on the Highway 29 roundabout at Welcome,
18 McAlister and other roads.  We’re concerned because
19 that part of the highway is two hundred and fifty
20 feet wide right-of-way.  And to go from high speeds
21 off 85 with all the freight moving and down that
22 corridor.  And we’ve gotten the bridge taken out
23 that’s caused a lot of trouble.  And with all the
24 work up and down 29, we have concerns that that may
25 not be the most appropriate solution.  We believe
26 that it should be four lanes with a turn lane there. 
27 That should mitigate the terrible wrecks that they’ve
28 had there in the past.  It’s very hard to slow an
29 eighteen wheeler down however many tons it is to do a
30 roundabout.  
31 And of course, SCDOT’s position is that it will 
32 -- there will be more wrecks but fewer fatalities. 
33 And I’m not sure how that can be a happier issue,
34 actually, because I’ve got a feeling there are going
35 to be still fatalities.  So anyone who has an
36 interest in that, there’s a comment period open right
37 now and we’re hoping to enlist everyone to come to a
38 better proposal.
39 But anyway, we appreciate everybody’s hard work. 
40 Thank you.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am.
42 Good luck.  I know they love -- South Carolina
43 Department of Transportation loves the roundabouts.  
44 CINDY WILSON:  It only took
45 twenty years to get that bridge taken out.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Wright,
47 Councilman Wright.
48 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you,
49 Mr. Chairman.  The only thing I want to mention is we
50 did have a Litter Committee meeting yesterday that



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
26

1 took place.  Mr. Glenn Davis and Mr. Graham were
2 there, as well as some members of the community.  Mr.
3 Clardy, who is here tonight, was also in attendance
4 at that meeting.  And I felt we made some really good
5 progress.  We’ve going to meet against next month.  
6 But some of the things we discussed in that
7 meeting were adding some cameras throughout the
8 county, along with posting some signs that, you know,
9 with surveillance messaging, adding probably two
10 officers.  Hopefully, Mr. Burns, he mentioned the
11 budget, and things are being worked on.  That’s
12 something else that we’re going to hopefully be
13 taking a look at.
14 Updating our ordinances specifically as it
15 pertains to junk vehicles.  Mr. Harmon and I, along
16 with Mr. Greg Smith, are going to be working through
17 that.  And then kind of a rebranding campaign for the
18 county as a whole.  
19 So some good progress made.  Some of this stuff
20 is going to cost us money.  But as I said yesterday
21 in our meeting, it’s an investment.  And if we’re
22 going to make this a priority to clean up the county,
23 I think it’s going to take an investment from the
24 county.  And so just excited about what’s to come. 
25 It’s not going to happen overnight, but I believe if
26 we continue to make progress over the long haul, it
27 will make a difference.  That’s all I have.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
29 Mr. Wright, for the work that you and your committee
30 is doing.  And I apologize, with my work schedule,
31 not being able to make it.  But have kept up with
32 what’s going on and found out.  I talked to Mr. Burns
33 this week.  I think I’ve talked to you about this
34 also.  I’d like for the next Council meeting or
35 y’all’s next thing, I think it would a good idea to
36 have a couple of contests.  
37 One will be whatever we come up with, class,
38 school or what not, who can pick up the most trash. 
39 Give them something.  And also design something, as
40 you say, a rebranding.  Do that right there and give
41 them something.  I just think it would be a good PR
42 thing, good thing to get the word out there, be good
43 all the way around, I think.
44 JOHN WRIGHT:  Totally
45 agree.  And Greg Smith and I did speak about that
46 yesterday after the meeting, as well.  So that’s
47 something we’re going to be looking into.  And
48 especially once we get on the other side of this
49 budget stuff.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
27

1 very much.
2 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Ray
4 Graham.
5 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you,
6 Mr. Chairman.  On that I just want to commend Mr.
7 Wright on the -- leading that effort on that.  Had a
8 real good meeting yesterday.  So definitely enjoyed
9 that.  On that same note, just want to comment Ashley
10 Price and a home school group during clean-up for
11 Anderson County.  They’re out of Starr.  There’s
12 about twelve to thirteen kids basically, literally,
13 went around the circle at Crescent High School and
14 picked up fifty -- I believe it was fifty-two bags of
15 trash.  And again, these was elementary school kids
16 and some adults assisted on that.  So definitely
17 commend them on that.
18 And also Belton done a clean-up day that
19 Saturday.  Tammy Roberts is the one that kind of
20 heads that up in Belton.  I think they picked up I
21 think it’s close to eighty bags of trash on that
22 morning.  And the mayor and several members of
23 Council was out helping and also some students from
24 BHP, along with some other citizens.  So again, just
25 wanted to publicly recognize that group, as well, on
26 their work as far as cleaning up the county.
27 On another note, just wanted to thank Mr. Davis,
28 Mr. Dunn, the county employees that was involved as
29 far as on getting the park redone down at Wellington. 
30 That was a great event.  I know Mr. Wright was there,
31 as well.  Definitely, I tell you I ride by that park
32 on a regular basis.  And to see where it was and to
33 see where it is today.  And I purposely rode by last
34 week on two separate days in the evenings just to
35 see, you know, is it being used.  On both of those
36 days that I rode by in the evenings, there was ball
37 teams out practicing on the ballfield and there was
38 kids out playing ball on the basketball court.  So it
39 goes to show, you know, you go back to Field of
40 Dreams, if we build it, they’ll come.  I tell you,
41 that’s a prime example of taking some effort and
42 revamping something and putting some investment in it
43 and getting a return.  
44 I know Walt Lanier, he was very instrumental.  He
45 had -- Mr. Burns, what was it, about four of those
46 giant boxes ---
47 RUSTY BURNS:  Giant boxes
48 of basketballs and soccer balls.
49 RAY GRAHAM:  Basketballs
50 and soccer balls.  I mean that community, I tell you,



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
28

1 to get so much criticism, they sure do know how to
2 come together.  And when they come together, buddy,
3 they scream.  There was two churches down there
4 feeding hotdogs.  Again, I mean the other Council
5 members was there.  But I mean, it was a great event
6 to attend and to see that type of turnout.  And you
7 know, people really being appreciative.  So
8 definitely was excited to be a part of that.  And
9 again, thank my fellow Council members for kind of
10 heading that up because it was definitely a great
11 event.  Thank you so much.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
13 Councilman Glenn Davis.  Mr. Davis.
14 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you,
15 Mr. Chairman.  I’d also, just to piggyback on Mr.
16 Graham’s talk about the ribbon cutting.  It was an
17 outstanding occasion where the government and
18 citizenry came together for a common cause and I was
19 just -- I was overjoyed to see the kids playing.  I
20 rode by there yesterday, like Mr. Graham said, and
21 they were out there playing basketball.  It just does
22 my heart good to see something like that in the
23 community.
24 On another effort, we formed a committee about
25 two weeks ago.  We had our first meeting for District
26 2 parks and playgrounds.  From that committee -- and
27 we had Blake Sanders facilitating it -- we’re going
28 to put out a survey amongst the residents in the
29 district to get their feel on what they would like to
30 see in District 2 as far as parks and playgrounds. 
31 And he’s already got the survey and we’re going to
32 send it out through the local schools in District 2. 
33 And I’m looking forward to that to some positive
34 feedback and negative feedback, whatever.  
35 But I’m looking to put some parks and playgrounds
36 in District 2.  Recreation is a big thing.  I love to
37 exercise and there are a lot of parks and playgrounds
38 in the county.  I’d like to see a little bit more in
39 District 2.  And I think it’s going to be a great
40 effort.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
42 Mr. Davis.  Mr. Sanders.
43 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you,
44 Mr. Chairman.  I hear the parks and the playgrounds
45 and all the quality of life to increase, but I want
46 to thank our Economic Development Department.  You
47 know, we have a lot of new companies coming in.  But
48 I also want to thank our administration and our
49 Council members.  If you notice, a lot of these --
50 there’s a lot of expansion and growth of companies



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
29

1 that’s home grown right here.  And I’m a firm
2 believer in trickle-down economics.  Without these
3 companies, without Council’s business-friendly
4 atmosphere, a lot of this wouldn’t be possible.  So I
5 really want to thank everyone.  I think Anderson -- I
6 was born and raised here.  And man, things have
7 changed a lot.  
8 When I got out of college you either done your
9 own thing or you had to leave here to find a career. 
10 And now you’re seeing not only people and friends
11 here that have careers here, but their kids are
12 graduating and they’re finding employment, good
13 careers here, and I just want to thank Economic
14 Development, our Administrator and thank you guys.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
16 Mr. Sanders.  Mr. Jimmy Davis.
17 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you,
18 Mr. Chair.  I want to make sure everyone is invited. 
19 Next Friday, the 15th, we’re having the
20 groundbreaking ceremony at Dolly Cooper Park.  So
21 everyone is invited out to join us for that.  Mr.
22 Meade, I hope you’ll be there to record the event.  
23 But you know, and also special thanks to Council
24 for helping us make this a reality.  And also to
25 inform you today the pickle ball court started
26 construction at Hurricane Springs Park right beside
27 Wren High School.  So we’re excited about that.  A
28 lot of great things going on in Anderson County.  I
29 know there’s -- we get updates all the time.  And I
30 think people are excited about all the great events
31 that are happening.
32 I know Pendleton -- I stumbled upon Pendleton’s
33 great event this past weekend.  But there’s always
34 something good going on, and I’m encouraged by not
35 only our growth but our growth and the way we go
36 about it and our quality of life.  Thank you, Mr.
37 Chair.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you,
39 Mr. Davis.  
40 A couple of things.  I want to thank the
41 Administrator and Council members and Ms. Wilson for
42 not this past Saturday but Saturday before that we
43 had a kickoff thing, a ribbon cutting ceremony at the
44 Civic Center at the balloon launch fields for the
45 cricket thing.  There was a good crowd there.  A lot
46 of people enjoy that from all over.  I can only see
47 that getting bigger and bigger.  And I know
48 everything ain’t about economics, but that will turn
49 in to be an economics thing, I’m telling you, because
50 people coming from Greenville coming over here and



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
30

1 playing that and seemed to have a good time.
2 I also want to thank my fellow Council members
3 and Administrator for last Saturday down at the
4 Wellington ball field.  That’s a park we’ve worked on
5 since I got on Council.  We steadily improve it every
6 year.  And as Mr. Glenn Davis said, we ain’t done
7 yet.  Good to see all the people down there enjoying
8 that and what all is going on.  Good to see the
9 churches down there involved.  The one across the
10 road has really picked up and got things -- Reverend
11 Wiles is down there and he’s excited.  We’ve got a
12 little bit of a partnership working with that church
13 there on some things.  It’s good to see that and good
14 to see that community down there pull together and
15 have that.  
16 It goes back to years ago when Mr. Burns first
17 come on -- it’s amazing what Anderson County does
18 with the budget we have as far as parks and
19 recreation, what Mr. Burns and his staff is able to
20 pull off.  Very thankful.  One of the first things
21 Mr. Burns done when he got the Administrator’s job --
22 well, Interim Administrator because he was it for
23 about seven years.  I think he’s got the state record
24 on that.  When he was first hired, one of the first
25 moves he done was create a Recreation Department full
26 time.  And we were very fortunate at the time, Mr.
27 Burns has got a pretty eye for talent.  And he seem
28 somebody in Matt Schell wanting to get involved and
29 so that, and I think Matt Schell has done an
30 outstanding job.  The whole department does a good
31 job, the four of them, but Matt does -- his heart is
32 in it.  He puts a lot of hours in, a lot of work, and
33 he’s really got a love for it and see things.  And
34 really has turned out things.  And it’s countywide. 
35 Everywhere we’ve got something going on and trying to
36 do it.  
37 It would be a lot farther along if it wasn’t for
38 the weather, but the Civic Center out there, the new
39 kids’ playground out there, that’s going to be huge. 
40 And as Mr. Burns phrased a long time ago, that Civic
41 Center, there’s people from all over Anderson County
42 goes there to use that thing.  From Iva to
43 Powdersville, what not.  And as the weather -- even
44 when it ain’t so great, but especially when the
45 weather is good, that place is our Central Park.  I
46 mean it is -- it’s hopping and going on.  Really want
47 to appreciate that and think about what all we’ve got
48 going on.  
49 And as Mr. Sanders alluded to, the Economic
50 Development in Anderson County has been blessed with



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - April 5, 2022
31

1 and still got.  Very fortunate in that because Mr.
2 Sanders, I’m a very firm believer in -- they can call
3 it trickle-down economics if they want to, but it
4 works.  There’s a reason we ain’t had no tax
5 increases.
6 Another thing I want to remind everybody if we
7 would, Mr. Crowder’s dedication thing is going to be
8 Sunday at three o’clock.  Mr. Crowder was very -- he
9 had his ways, he done a lot of good for Anderson
10 County, his heart was in the right place.  But thing
11 about it, he had a passion for that East-West
12 Connector and he had a passion for that park out
13 there.  That park, he helped get it started.  And Mr.
14 Wooten come on board and seen it through.  Now Mr.
15 Wright is there.  It’s a good thing.  You can ride
16 from one end to the other of that East-West Connector
17 and there’s always -- I don’t care if it’s pouring
18 down rain, hot, cold, what not, there’s somebody out
19 there on that East-West Connector walking, running,
20 enjoying it out there.  So very blessed and there’s
21 improvement on it, too.
22 Hope everybody has a good night.  See you next
23 meeting.
24
25 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:36 P.M.)



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-004 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 38-311(C) OF THE ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA, CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ADD AN ADDITIONAL 
SUBSECTION TO ESTABLISH A TIME FRAME FOR CONSIDERATION OF 
PREVIOUSLY DISAPPROVED PROJECTS BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County, South Carolina, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 38 does 
not presently address a time frame whereby projects disapproved by the Planning Commission 
may be amended and brought back before the Planning Commission; 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council desires to provide for the efficient operation 
of the Planning Commission; 

WHEREAS, various proposed projects have been brought before the Planning 
Commission multiple times with minimal revisions to a previous proposal; and 

WHEREAS,  the County Council desires to amend Section 38-311 (c) of the Code of 
Ordinances to address the above stated issues. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1. The Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, is hereby amended by
adding a section, to be numbered 38-311 (c)(2), which section reads as follows: 

38-311 (c)
(2) If the subdivider submits a corrected preliminary plat as provided in

subsection (1) above and its is rejected by the planning commission,
no further preliminary plats may be submitted within the next six (6)
months.

2. The existing section 38-311(c)(2) shall be renumbered to 38-311 (c)(3) and existing
section 38-311(c)(3) shall be renumbered to 38-311(c)(4). 

3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 

5. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 



ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of April, 2022. 

ATTEST:     FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Rusty Burns   Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 

Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: _________________

2nd Reading:__________________ 

3rd Reading:___________________ 

Public Hearing:________________ 

January 18, 2022

February 1, 2022

April 19, 2022

April 19, 2022



 

 
 

1 
 

 
ORDINANCE 2022-009 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR THE CREATION OF THE RIVER OAKS 
SPECIAL TAX  DISTRICT; TO  ESTABLISH THE  NATURE  OF  SERVICES TO  
BE  PERFORMED THEREIN; TO DESIGNATE  THE  UNIFORM SERVICE CHARGE 
IN THE  RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT; TO PROVIDE FOR 
THE  OPERATION OF THE RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and through the 
Anderson County Council  (the "Council"),  is authorized  pursuant to the provisions of Title  4, 
Chapter  9, entitled "County Government,"  Code  of  Laws  of  South  Carolina,  1976,  as  amended  
(the  "Code"),  to  assess property and levy ad valorem property tax and uniform service charges, 
including the power to tax different areas at different rates related to the nature and level of 
governmental services provided; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Council, pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii), of the Code  (the "Act"),  may,  

upon certification  of a  petition signed  by seventy-five  percent (75%)  or more of the resident  
freeholders  who own   at least seventy-five  percent (75%)  of the assessed valuation of real property  
in a given  area  of the County, pass an ordinance establishing a special tax district for the area in 
question. For the purposes of the Act,   "freeholder" has  the  same  meaning  as  defined  in  Section  
5-3-240  of  the  Code,  which  defines freeholder as: any person eighteen (18) years of age, or older, 
and any firm or corporation,  who or which owns legal  title to a present possessory  interest  in real 
estate equal  to a life estate  or greater  (expressly excluding leaseholds, easements, equitable interests, 
inchoate rights, dower rights, and future interests) and who  owns, at the date of the petition  or of the 
referendum, at least an undivided  one-tenth  interest  in a single tract and whose name appears on the 
County tax records as an owner of real estate; and, 

 

WHEREAS,  the resident freeholders  of River Oaks Subdivision,  representing  at least 
seventy-five percent (75%)  of  the resident  freeholders  and  owning at  least seventy-five  percent  
(75%)    of  the  total assessed valuation  of real  property,  have  properly  submitted  a  petition 
containing  a  designation  of  the boundaries of a proposed special  tax district,  description of the 
nature of the services  to be rendered,  and the  maximum  level of taxes or user service charges, or 
both, authorized  to be levied and collected,  to the Council, requesting  the Council  pass  an  ordinance  
establishing  a special  tax  district.    A copy of said petition is attached h e r e t o  as Exhibit A, and  
hereby  incorporated  by reference  as  fully  as  if set  forth verbatim herein; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the aforementioned petition has been reviewed by the Anderson County Assessor, 

who found that it complies with the requirements of the Act.  The petition contains thirty-five (35) 
signatures and represents One Hundred Eighty Nine Thousand and Eight Hundred Twenty Dollars 
($189,820) of total assessed value.  The Assessor has certified that the requisite number of signatures 
representing the requisite amount of assessed value has been established through a review of the 
ownership records of the proposed special   tax district.  A copy of the Assessor's certification i s  
attached  hereto  as  Exhibit B, and  hereby incorporated by reference as fully as if set forth verbatim 
herein; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Anderson County, acting by and through the Council, desires to create the River 

Oaks Special Tax District, establish the nature of services to be performed, designate the uniform service 
charge in the River Oaks Special Tax District and provide for the operation of the River Oaks Special 



2 

Tax District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in a meeting duly assembled, 
that: 

1. Anderson  County  Council,  acting  pursuant  to the  power and  authority  conferred  upon
it by the constitution and laws of the State of South Carolina, hereby creates and
acknowledges a special  tax district,  known  as the River Oaks Special  Tax  District,
consisting  of all  of those  forty-six (46) parcels  of  real  property  located  within  River
Oaks  Subdivision  as  the River Oaks  Special  Tax District, more specifically consisting
of all forty-six (46) parcels  fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), and
River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001 through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive). A copy of a map of the proposed River Oaks Special Tax  District,
detailing  all  parcels  to be  included,  is attached  hereto  as Exhibit  C,  and hereby
incorporated  by reference as fully as if set forth verbatim herein.

2. The creation of River Oaks Special  Tax  District  is specifically  for the purpose  of repairing
and upgrading,  to the standards of the Anderson County road system,  two (2) roads in the
River Oaks Subdivision  (the "Subdivision  Roads") for the specific purpose of having
Anderson County accept the Subdivision  Roads into the Anderson  County  road system.
The Subdivision Roads are more particularly described as River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A),
measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet (1200’) from the Highway 81
North (SC 81) until it ends; River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately  one
thousand three hundred feet (1300’) from the edge of River oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge
of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A).

3. Anderson County Council hereby acknowledges that the services to be rendered for the
purpose of upgrading and repairing of the Subdivision Roads are more particularly described
as:

1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY)
4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)
18) Concrete Catch Basin Aprons/Driveways (Approximately 25 SY)
19) Stop Signs, Road Name Signs, Speed Limit Signs, Turn Signs (Approximately 6 EA)
20) Seed & Mulch Disturbed Areas (Approximately 0.25 AC)
21) Contingency



3 

Once the Subdivision Roads are accepted into the County road system, the County will 
provide the same level of services on them as it does for other similar County roads. 

4. The River Oaks Special Tax District shall, pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(b) of the Code,
function entirely as an administrative division of Anderson County.

5. The cost of finishing of services of the River Oaks Special Tax District shall be paid from
the collection of a uniform schedule of fees, without interest, upon all parcels of real
property within the River Oaks Special Tax District, collected annually, for a period not to
exceed ten (10) years.

6. The  maximum  level of user service  charges  authorized  to be levied and collected  in
River Oaks Special  Tax  District  represent the actual costs  of the above described  work,
currently estimated  to be in the amount of Two Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand Dollars
($256,000). Although the Two Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand Dollars ($256,000) is an
estimate, if the amount is a complete and accurate estimate, the per lot cost, based on the
forty-six (46)  parcels   located  in  River Oaks Subdivision  included   in  the  proposed
special  tax district,  would  be approximately Five Thousand Five Hundred Sixty-Five and
22/100 Dollars ($5,565.22), and because  the  repayment  period  authorized  by the  County
without  interest  is  ten  (10)  years,  the annual  uniform  user service charge, per affected
parcel , will be approximately Five Hundred Fifty-Six and 52/100 Dollars ($556.52).   The exact
amount of the service charge per parcel, will be certified by the Anderson County Roads
and Bridges Director to the Anderson County Auditor, based upon the actual amounts of the
construction costs as outlined herein, to be placed on the respective Anderson County tax bills
for the affected parcels,  beginning fall 2022 tax bills, to be collected with and in the same
manner as all other taxes and user service charges.  The user service charges are a charge
against and run with the parcels of real property located in River Oaks Special Tax District,
as set forth herein.

7. Should any term, provision, or content of this ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or
otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall have
no effect on the remainder of this ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable.

8. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council inconsistent
herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and
superseded.

9. This Ordinance shall become effective and be in full force and effect from and after the
public hearing and the third reading in accordance with the Code of Ordinances, Anderson
County, South Carolina.



4 

ORDAINED in meeting. Duly assembled, this _______ day of _________ 2022. 

ATTEST: FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Rusty Burns  Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 

Renee D. Watts 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

  First Reading: 
  Second Reading: 
  Third Reading: 
  Public Hearing: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

March 15, 2022
April 5, 2022
April 19, 2022
April 5, 2022

19th   April



1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

PETITION TO CREATE A SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FOR 
AND IN RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION, ANDERSON COUNTY

Pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the 
undersigned resident freeholders of River Oaks Subdivision (“River Oaks”) hereby petition the 
Anderson County Council to pass an ordinance establishing the below described special tax district:

A. Name of proposed special tax district:  River Oaks Special Tax District.
B. Purpose of proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident freeholders hereby request 

that Anderson County repair and upgrade, to the standards of the Anderson County road system, 
two (2) roads in River Oaks (the “Subdivision Roads”) for the specific purpose of having Anderson 
County accept the Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system.  The Subdivision 
Roads are more particularly described as:

(1) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet 
(1200’) from the edge of Highway 81 North (SC 81) until it dead ends;

(2) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately one thousand three hundred feet 
(1300’) from the edge of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge of River Oaks Circle 
(P-02-0117A); 

C. Designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident 
freeholders hereby request that Anderson County designate all of those forty-six (46) parcels of 
real property located within River Oaks as the River Oaks Special Tax District, more specifically 
consisting of all forty-six (46) parcels fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), 
and Rivers Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County 
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001, through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive).

D. Nature of services to be rendered for the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned 
resident freeholders hereby request Anderson County to upgrade and repair the Subdivision Roads 
as follows:  

(1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
(2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
(3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY) 
(4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
(5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
(6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
(7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
(8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
(11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
(14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
(15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
(16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
(17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)



2

(18) Concrete Catch Basin Aprons/Driveways (Approximately 25 SY)
(19) Stop Signs, Road Name Signs, Speed Limit Signs, Turn Signs (Approximately 6 EA)
(20) Seed & Mulch Disturbed Areas (Approximately 0.25 AC)
(21) Contingency

The undersigned resident freeholders acknowledge that once Anderson County accepts the 
Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system, Anderson County will be responsible 
for the upkeep and maintenance of the Subdivision Roads at the same level of service Anderson 
County provides other similar Anderson County roads in the Anderson County road system.

E. Maximum level of taxes or user service charges, or both, authorized to be levied and collected 
for the proposed special tax district: The undersigned resident freeholders acknowledge that 
Anderson County currently estimates that the cost of above described work performed by Anderson 
County will be Two Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand Dollars ($256,000.00).  The undersigned resident 
freeholders further request that Anderson County collect the actual cost of the work as a uniform 
user service charge per parcel.  Two Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand Dollars ($256,000.00) is merely 
an estimate of the cost of above described work as performed by Anderson County, and the 
undersigned resident freeholders acknowledge that the uniform service charge will be based on the 
actual cost of the work, whatever it is.  However, if the above-stated amount is a complete and 
accurate estimate, the per-parcel cost, based on the forty-six (46) parcels located in River Oaks 
included in the proposed special tax district, would be approximately Five Thousand Five Hundred 
Sixty-Five and 22/100 Dollars ($5,565.22).  Therefore, if the repayment period authorized by 
Anderson County without interest is ten (10) years, the annual uniform user service charge, per 
affected parcel, will be approximately Five Hundred Fifty-Six and 52/100 Dollars ($556.52).

The undersigned resident freeholders of the affected improved parcels of River Oaks, consisting 
of seventy-five (75%) percent of the resident freeholders who own at least seventy-five (75%) percent 
of the assessed valuation of the special tax district, have signed this petition of their own free will and 
initiative and hereby request that Anderson County Council pass an ordinance creating the proposed 
special tax district for the purposes stated above:







1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

PETITION TO CREATE A SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FOR 
AND IN RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION, ANDERSON COUNTY

Pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the 
undersigned resident freeholders of River Oaks Subdivision (“River Oaks”) hereby petition the 
Anderson County Council to pass an ordinance establishing the below described special tax district:

A. Name of proposed special tax district:  River Oaks Special Tax District.
B. Purpose of proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident freeholders hereby request 

that Anderson County repair and upgrade, to the standards of the Anderson County road system, 
two (2) roads in River Oaks (the “Subdivision Roads”) for the specific purpose of having Anderson 
County accept the Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system.  The Subdivision 
Roads are more particularly described as:

(1) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet 
(1200’) from the edge of Highway 81 North (SC 81) until it dead ends;

(2) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately one thousand three hundred feet 
(1300’) from the edge of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge of River Oaks Circle 
(P-02-0117A); 

C. Designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident 
freeholders hereby request that Anderson County designate all of those forty-six (46) parcels of 
real property located within River Oaks as the River Oaks Special Tax District, more specifically 
consisting of all forty-six (46) parcels fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), 
and Rivers Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County 
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001, through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive).

D. Nature of services to be rendered for the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned 
resident freeholders hereby request Anderson County to upgrade and repair the Subdivision Roads 
as follows:  

(1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
(2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
(3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY) 
(4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
(5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
(6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
(7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
(8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
(11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
(14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
(15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
(16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
(17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)







1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

PETITION TO CREATE A SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FOR 
AND IN RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION, ANDERSON COUNTY

Pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the 
undersigned resident freeholders of River Oaks Subdivision (“River Oaks”) hereby petition the 
Anderson County Council to pass an ordinance establishing the below described special tax district:

A. Name of proposed special tax district:  River Oaks Special Tax District.
B. Purpose of proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident freeholders hereby request 

that Anderson County repair and upgrade, to the standards of the Anderson County road system, 
two (2) roads in River Oaks (the “Subdivision Roads”) for the specific purpose of having Anderson 
County accept the Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system.  The Subdivision 
Roads are more particularly described as:

(1) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet 
(1200’) from the edge of Highway 81 North (SC 81) until it dead ends;

(2) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately one thousand three hundred feet 
(1300’) from the edge of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge of River Oaks Circle 
(P-02-0117A); 

C. Designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident 
freeholders hereby request that Anderson County designate all of those forty-six (46) parcels of 
real property located within River Oaks as the River Oaks Special Tax District, more specifically 
consisting of all forty-six (46) parcels fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), 
and Rivers Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County 
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001, through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive).

D. Nature of services to be rendered for the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned 
resident freeholders hereby request Anderson County to upgrade and repair the Subdivision Roads 
as follows:  

(1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
(2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
(3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY) 
(4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
(5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
(6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
(7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
(8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
(11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
(14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
(15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
(16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
(17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)





1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

PETITION TO CREATE A SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FOR 
AND IN RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION, ANDERSON COUNTY

Pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the 
undersigned resident freeholders of River Oaks Subdivision (“River Oaks”) hereby petition the 
Anderson County Council to pass an ordinance establishing the below described special tax district:

A. Name of proposed special tax district:  River Oaks Special Tax District.
B. Purpose of proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident freeholders hereby request 

that Anderson County repair and upgrade, to the standards of the Anderson County road system, 
two (2) roads in River Oaks (the “Subdivision Roads”) for the specific purpose of having Anderson 
County accept the Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system.  The Subdivision 
Roads are more particularly described as:

(1) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet 
(1200’) from the edge of Highway 81 North (SC 81) until it dead ends;

(2) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately one thousand three hundred feet 
(1300’) from the edge of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge of River Oaks Circle 
(P-02-0117A); 

C. Designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident 
freeholders hereby request that Anderson County designate all of those forty-six (46) parcels of 
real property located within River Oaks as the River Oaks Special Tax District, more specifically 
consisting of all forty-six (46) parcels fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), 
and Rivers Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County 
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001, through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive).

D. Nature of services to be rendered for the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned 
resident freeholders hereby request Anderson County to upgrade and repair the Subdivision Roads 
as follows:  

(1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
(2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
(3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY) 
(4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
(5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
(6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
(7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
(8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
(11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
(14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
(15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
(16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
(17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)





1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

PETITION TO CREATE A SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FOR 
AND IN RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION, ANDERSON COUNTY

Pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the 
undersigned resident freeholders of River Oaks Subdivision (“River Oaks”) hereby petition the 
Anderson County Council to pass an ordinance establishing the below described special tax district:

A. Name of proposed special tax district:  River Oaks Special Tax District.
B. Purpose of proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident freeholders hereby request 

that Anderson County repair and upgrade, to the standards of the Anderson County road system, 
two (2) roads in River Oaks (the “Subdivision Roads”) for the specific purpose of having Anderson 
County accept the Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system.  The Subdivision 
Roads are more particularly described as:

(1) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet 
(1200’) from the edge of Highway 81 North (SC 81) until it dead ends;

(2) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately one thousand three hundred feet 
(1300’) from the edge of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge of River Oaks Circle 
(P-02-0117A); 

C. Designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident 
freeholders hereby request that Anderson County designate all of those forty-six (46) parcels of 
real property located within River Oaks as the River Oaks Special Tax District, more specifically 
consisting of all forty-six (46) parcels fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), 
and Rivers Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County 
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001, through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive).

D. Nature of services to be rendered for the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned 
resident freeholders hereby request Anderson County to upgrade and repair the Subdivision Roads 
as follows:  

(1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
(2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
(3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY) 
(4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
(5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
(6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
(7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
(8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
(11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
(14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
(15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
(16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
(17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)





1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

PETITION TO CREATE A SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FOR 
AND IN RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION, ANDERSON COUNTY

Pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the 
undersigned resident freeholders of River Oaks Subdivision (“River Oaks”) hereby petition the 
Anderson County Council to pass an ordinance establishing the below described special tax district:

A. Name of proposed special tax district:  River Oaks Special Tax District.
B. Purpose of proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident freeholders hereby request 

that Anderson County repair and upgrade, to the standards of the Anderson County road system, 
two (2) roads in River Oaks (the “Subdivision Roads”) for the specific purpose of having Anderson 
County accept the Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system.  The Subdivision 
Roads are more particularly described as:

(1) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet 
(1200’) from the edge of Highway 81 North (SC 81) until it dead ends;

(2) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately one thousand three hundred feet 
(1300’) from the edge of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge of River Oaks Circle 
(P-02-0117A); 

C. Designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident 
freeholders hereby request that Anderson County designate all of those forty-six (46) parcels of 
real property located within River Oaks as the River Oaks Special Tax District, more specifically 
consisting of all forty-six (46) parcels fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), 
and Rivers Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County 
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001, through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive).

D. Nature of services to be rendered for the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned 
resident freeholders hereby request Anderson County to upgrade and repair the Subdivision Roads 
as follows:  

(1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
(2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
(3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY) 
(4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
(5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
(6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
(7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
(8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
(11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
(14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
(15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
(16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
(17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)





1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

PETITION TO CREATE A SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FOR 
AND IN RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION, ANDERSON COUNTY

Pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the 
undersigned resident freeholders of River Oaks Subdivision (“River Oaks”) hereby petition the 
Anderson County Council to pass an ordinance establishing the below described special tax district:

A. Name of proposed special tax district:  River Oaks Special Tax District.
B. Purpose of proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident freeholders hereby request 

that Anderson County repair and upgrade, to the standards of the Anderson County road system, 
two (2) roads in River Oaks (the “Subdivision Roads”) for the specific purpose of having Anderson 
County accept the Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system.  The Subdivision 
Roads are more particularly described as:

(1) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet 
(1200’) from the edge of Highway 81 North (SC 81) until it dead ends;

(2) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately one thousand three hundred feet 
(1300’) from the edge of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge of River Oaks Circle 
(P-02-0117A); 

C. Designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident 
freeholders hereby request that Anderson County designate all of those forty-six (46) parcels of 
real property located within River Oaks as the River Oaks Special Tax District, more specifically 
consisting of all forty-six (46) parcels fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), 
and Rivers Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County 
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001, through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive).

D. Nature of services to be rendered for the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned 
resident freeholders hereby request Anderson County to upgrade and repair the Subdivision Roads 
as follows:  

(1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
(2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
(3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY) 
(4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
(5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
(6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
(7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
(8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
(11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
(14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
(15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
(16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
(17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)







1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

PETITION TO CREATE A SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FOR 
AND IN RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION, ANDERSON COUNTY

Pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the 
undersigned resident freeholders of River Oaks Subdivision (“River Oaks”) hereby petition the 
Anderson County Council to pass an ordinance establishing the below described special tax district:

A. Name of proposed special tax district:  River Oaks Special Tax District.
B. Purpose of proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident freeholders hereby request 

that Anderson County repair and upgrade, to the standards of the Anderson County road system, 
two (2) roads in River Oaks (the “Subdivision Roads”) for the specific purpose of having Anderson 
County accept the Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system.  The Subdivision 
Roads are more particularly described as:

(1) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet 
(1200’) from the edge of Highway 81 North (SC 81) until it dead ends;

(2) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately one thousand three hundred feet 
(1300’) from the edge of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge of River Oaks Circle 
(P-02-0117A); 

C. Designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident 
freeholders hereby request that Anderson County designate all of those forty-six (46) parcels of 
real property located within River Oaks as the River Oaks Special Tax District, more specifically 
consisting of all forty-six (46) parcels fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), 
and Rivers Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County 
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001, through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive).

D. Nature of services to be rendered for the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned 
resident freeholders hereby request Anderson County to upgrade and repair the Subdivision Roads 
as follows:  

(1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
(2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
(3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY) 
(4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
(5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
(6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
(7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
(8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
(11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
(14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
(15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
(16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
(17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)





1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

PETITION TO CREATE A SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FOR 
AND IN RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION, ANDERSON COUNTY

Pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the 
undersigned resident freeholders of River Oaks Subdivision (“River Oaks”) hereby petition the 
Anderson County Council to pass an ordinance establishing the below described special tax district:

A. Name of proposed special tax district:  River Oaks Special Tax District.
B. Purpose of proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident freeholders hereby request 

that Anderson County repair and upgrade, to the standards of the Anderson County road system, 
two (2) roads in River Oaks (the “Subdivision Roads”) for the specific purpose of having Anderson 
County accept the Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system.  The Subdivision 
Roads are more particularly described as:

(1) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet 
(1200’) from the edge of Highway 81 North (SC 81) until it dead ends;

(2) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately one thousand three hundred feet 
(1300’) from the edge of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge of River Oaks Circle 
(P-02-0117A); 

C. Designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident 
freeholders hereby request that Anderson County designate all of those forty-six (46) parcels of 
real property located within River Oaks as the River Oaks Special Tax District, more specifically 
consisting of all forty-six (46) parcels fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), 
and Rivers Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County 
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001, through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive).

D. Nature of services to be rendered for the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned 
resident freeholders hereby request Anderson County to upgrade and repair the Subdivision Roads 
as follows:  

(1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
(2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
(3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY) 
(4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
(5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
(6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
(7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
(8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
(11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
(14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
(15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
(16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
(17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)





1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

PETITION TO CREATE A SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FOR 
AND IN RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION, ANDERSON COUNTY

Pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the 
undersigned resident freeholders of River Oaks Subdivision (“River Oaks”) hereby petition the 
Anderson County Council to pass an ordinance establishing the below described special tax district:

A. Name of proposed special tax district:  River Oaks Special Tax District.
B. Purpose of proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident freeholders hereby request 

that Anderson County repair and upgrade, to the standards of the Anderson County road system, 
two (2) roads in River Oaks (the “Subdivision Roads”) for the specific purpose of having Anderson 
County accept the Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system.  The Subdivision 
Roads are more particularly described as:

(1) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet 
(1200’) from the edge of Highway 81 North (SC 81) until it dead ends;

(2) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately one thousand three hundred feet 
(1300’) from the edge of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge of River Oaks Circle 
(P-02-0117A); 

C. Designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident 
freeholders hereby request that Anderson County designate all of those forty-six (46) parcels of 
real property located within River Oaks as the River Oaks Special Tax District, more specifically 
consisting of all forty-six (46) parcels fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), 
and Rivers Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County 
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001, through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive).

D. Nature of services to be rendered for the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned 
resident freeholders hereby request Anderson County to upgrade and repair the Subdivision Roads 
as follows:  

(1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
(2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
(3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY) 
(4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
(5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
(6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
(7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
(8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
(11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
(14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
(15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
(16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
(17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)









1

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

PETITION TO CREATE A SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FOR 
AND IN RIVER OAKS SUBDIVISION, ANDERSON COUNTY

Pursuant to Section 4-9-30(5)(a)(ii) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the 
undersigned resident freeholders of River Oaks Subdivision (“River Oaks”) hereby petition the 
Anderson County Council to pass an ordinance establishing the below described special tax district:

A. Name of proposed special tax district:  River Oaks Special Tax District.
B. Purpose of proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident freeholders hereby request 

that Anderson County repair and upgrade, to the standards of the Anderson County road system, 
two (2) roads in River Oaks (the “Subdivision Roads”) for the specific purpose of having Anderson 
County accept the Subdivision Roads into the Anderson County road system.  The Subdivision 
Roads are more particularly described as:

(1) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), measuring approximately one thousand two hundred feet 
(1200’) from the edge of Highway 81 North (SC 81) until it dead ends;

(2) River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B), measuring approximately one thousand three hundred feet 
(1300’) from the edge of River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A) to the edge of River Oaks Circle 
(P-02-0117A); 

C. Designation of the boundaries of the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned resident 
freeholders hereby request that Anderson County designate all of those forty-six (46) parcels of 
real property located within River Oaks as the River Oaks Special Tax District, more specifically 
consisting of all forty-six (46) parcels fronting on or touching River Oaks Circle (P-02-0117A), 
and Rivers Oaks Circle (P-02-0117B) and being more particularly described by Anderson County 
TMS numbers: 191-04-01-001, through 191-04-01-035 (inclusive), 191-04-02-001 through 191-
04-02-009 (inclusive).

D. Nature of services to be rendered for the proposed special tax district:  The undersigned 
resident freeholders hereby request Anderson County to upgrade and repair the Subdivision Roads 
as follows:  

(1) Mobilization (Approximately 1 LS)
(2) Traffic Control (Approximately 1 LS)
(3) Removal & Disposal of Existing Concrete Driveway (Approximately 25 SY) 
(4) Removal & Disposal of Existing Curb & Gutter (Approximately 250 LF)
(5) Clearing & Grubbing (Approximately 1 LS)
(6) Mowing Right of Way (Approximately 1,000 LF)
(7) Borrow Excavation (Approximately 100 CY)
(8) Milling Existing Asphalt 2” (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(9) 8” Cement Recycled Base (Approximately 6,111 SY)
(10) Portland Cement for Recycled Base (Approximately 150 Tons)
(11) Cement Recycled Base Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(12) Asphalt Testing (Approximately 1 LS)
(13) Liquid Asphalt Binder (Approximately 42 Tons)
(14) Asphalt Surface 2” (Approximately 687 Tons)
(15) Catch Basin/Manhole Repairs (Approximately 1 LS)
(16) Crack Seal Existing Concrete/Curb & Gutter (Approximately 100 LF)
(17) Concrete Curb & Gutter (1’-6”) Ogee (Approximately 250 LF)





 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District 5 
 

Brett Sanders 
V. Chairman, District 4 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
Council District 1 
 

Glenn Davis 
Council District 2 

Ray Graham 
Council District 3 
 

Jimmy Davis 
Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 
 

Lacey Croegaert 
Clerk to Council 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns | County Administrator 
rburns@andersoncountysc.org 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
TO:  Leon C. Harmon, Esquire 
  Anderson County Attorney 
   
FROM:  Robert L. McLean 
  Anderson County Assessor 
 
DATE:   February 18, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Special Tax District – River Oaks Subdivision 
 
Our office has reviewed the petition for the proposed River Oaks Subdivision Special Tax 
District.  We have determined that out of the forty-six(46) freehold owners within the 
special tax district, thirty-five (35) have signed the petition for a total of 76.09% of total 
ownership.  The total assessed value for all property in the special tax district is $229,830.  
The signers of the petition own $189,820 of that total assessment, or 82.59%.  This memo is 
to certify that as of February 18, 2022, the petition was signed by 76.09% of the freeholders, 
who own 82.59% of the assessed value of the real property in the proposed Special Tax 
District for River Oaks Subdivision.  If we may assist you further, please advise. 
 
cc: Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
 Holt Hopkins, Deputy County Administrator 
 Jacky Hunter, County Auditor 
 Jason Phillips, County Treasurer 
 Robert Carroll, Central Administrative Services Director 
  
 
 

Exhibit B



Lot 25
1910401025

Richey James O +
Barbara M Life Est

Pt L
ot 2

2
191

040
102

2
Ga

ddi
s P

am
ela

 Br
osk

y

Pt L
ot 2

2
191

040
102

6
Ma

tos
 Jo

se 
TLot
 21

A
191

040
102

1
Van

ce 
Fra

nk 
A +

 La
ura

 G

Lot
 21

B
191

040
102

9
Bu

rns
 Flo

ren
ce 

Ru
th

Lot
 20

B
191

040
102

0 p
o

Ro
sew

ood
 Ho

me
s L

LC

Lot
 20

A
191

040
102

0
Ro

sew
ood

 Ho
me

s L
LC

Lot
 19

B
191

040
103

4
GT

S L
ega

cy 
LL

C

Lo
t 19

A
191

040
101

9
Ne

ele
y J

am
es 

H J
r +

 Sh
aw

nec
eLot 18

1910401018

Wigington Benjamin

Lot 171910401017

Jones + Wilson LLC

Lot 161910401016Zarrouf Fahd A

Lot 151910401015Zarrouf Fahd A

Lot 141910401014Zarrouf Fahd A

Lot 131910401013Landrum Holdings LLC

Lot 30
1910402005

Richey James O +
Barbara M Life Est

Lot 29
1910402004

GTS Legacy LLC

Lot 28B
1910402009

Borden Brentley Danyel +
Bradley Juwan

Lot 28A
1910402003

Roy Steven Cory

Pt Lot 8
1910401035

Ervin Business Enterprises LLC

Lot 6

1910401006

Wigington Benjamin

Lot 7A
1910401007

Haddan Zachary T + Megan L

Lot 1
1910401001

Powdersville Holding LLC

Lot 2A
1910401002

Flinchum Tamara R

Lot 2B
1910401031

Welborn Claudia T

Lot 3A
1910401028

Davis Sharon Elizabeth

Lot 3B
1910401003

Davidson Frances J

Lot 4A
1910401004

Barnes Henry Nell

Lot 4B
1910401032

Douglas Joan

Pt Lot 5
1910401030

Rosewood Homes LLC

Pt Lot 5

1910401005

Paton John S

Pt Lot 8

1910401008

Ervin Business Enterprises LLC

Lot 9A

1910401009

Rosewood Homes LLC

Lo
t 9

B
191

040
100

9 p
o

Ro
sew

oo
d H

om
es 

LL
C

Lot 101910401010Wigington Ben

Lot 11
1910401011

Landrum Holdings LLC

Lot 121910401012Landrum Holdings LLC

Lot 27
1910402002

Ervin Business
Enterprises LLC

Lot 26A1910402001McCarson Sam

Lot 26B1910402007

Smith Richard H + Mary

Lot 24B
1910401024

Burgess Linda A Life Est

Lot 24A
1910401027

Knight Joy

Lot 31
B

191
040

200
6

Rodriguez
 Alicia

 ELo
t 31

A
191

040
200

8
Ko

ury
 La

ura
 Je

an

Pt Lot 23
1910401023

Ervin Business Enterprises LLC

Lot 7B
1910401033

Sloas Michael

River Oaks Cir P-2-117A

Ri
ve

r O
ak

s C
ir 

 P-
2-1

17
B

Hi
gh

wa
y 8

1 N
SC

-81

Mirinda Ln

C-2-78A

Old Greenville HwySC-8

Jenna Ln
C-2-78B

±

Exhibit C

Updated November 9, 2021 Anderson County Roads & Bridges Dept.



NPGVL1:2179592.3  

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-011 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE 
IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA AND KELLEY ENGINEERING, LLC, FORMERLY KNOWN 
TO THE COUNTY AS PROJECT YELL, WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN THE COUNTY, WHEREBY SUCH 
PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES, 
INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL SOURCE CREDITS; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), acting by and 

through its County Council (the “County Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the 
provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park Act”), and 
Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to enter into agreements with 
industry whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified projects; to provide 
infrastructure credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of investment in certain 
infrastructure enhancing the economic development of the County; through all such powers the industrial 
development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing 
manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus utilize and employ the 
manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare of the County by 
providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the FILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the County 
did previously enter into an Inducement Agreement dated March 15, 2022 (the “Inducement Agreement”) 
with Kelley Engineering, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company (the “Company”) (which was 
known to the County at the time as “Project Yell”), with respect to the acquisition, construction, and 
installation of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, furnishings and other real 
and/or tangible personal property to constitute a new distribution/manufacturing facility in the County 
(collectively, the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an investment of 
approximately $6,000,000 in the County and the expected creation of eighty (80) new, full-time jobs at the 
Project, all within the Investment Period (as such term is defined in the hereinafter defined Fee Agreement; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are 
defined in the FILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent not 
already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park such that the Project will 
receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Agreement, the County has agreed to, among other things, 
(a) enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement with the Company (the “Fee 
Agreement”), whereby the County would provide therein for a payment of a fee-in-lieu-of taxes by the 
Company with respect to the Project, and (b) provide for certain special source credits to be claimed by the 
Company against its payments of fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 4-1-175 
of the Multi-County Park Act; and  



2 
NPGVL1:2179592.3  

 
 WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Fee Agreement which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before this meeting, are 
in appropriate form and are an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the County 
for the purposes intended;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 
 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a “project” and “economic development property” as said terms 
are referred to and defined in the FILOT Act, and the County’s actions herein will subserve the purposes and 
in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the FILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of jobs 
and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms and provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if 
the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council and/or the 
County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver 
the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby 
authorized and directed to attest the same, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the 
Company and cause a copy of the same to be delivered to the Anderson County Auditor, Assessor and 
Treasurer. The Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, 
or with such minor changes therein as shall be approved by the County Administrator, upon advice of counsel, 
his execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of his approval of any and all changes or revisions 
therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to County 
Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary 
to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations of the County 
thereunder. 

Section 4. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid 
or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and 
provisions hereunder. 



3 
NPGVL1:2179592.3  

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage 
by the County Council. 

 
 ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this 19th day of April 2022.  
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
By:       
 Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Council 
 

Attest: 
 
 
By:       
            Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
 
By:       
            Renee D. Watts, Clerk to Council 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By:       
 Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
First Reading: March 15, 2022  
Second Reading: April 5, 2022  
Third Reading: April 19, 2022 
Public Hearing: April 19, 2022  
 
 
 



NPGVL1:2179592.3  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval, by the County Council at its meetings of March 15, 2022, April 5, 2022, and 
April 19, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and an 
original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________________ 
 Renee D. Watts, Clerk to County Council, 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
Dated: April 19, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

NPGVL1:2178981.3  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND 
SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

 
 

Between 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 

and 
 
 

KELLEY ENGINEERING, LLC 
 
 
 

 
Dated as of April 19, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

i 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.01 DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................................................ 3 
SECTION 1.02 PROJECT-RELATED INVESTMENTS ........................................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 
SECTION 2.01 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COUNTY.................................................. 7 
SECTION 2.02 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY ............................................... 7 

ARTICLE III 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 
SECTION 3.01 THE PROJECT ........................................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 3.02 DILIGENT COMPLETION ........................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 3.03 FILINGS AND REPORTS ............................................................................................................................. 8 

ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 
SECTION 4.01 FILOT PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................................. 10 
SECTION 4.02 SPECIAL SOURCE CREDITS ..................................................................................................................... 11 
SECTION 4.03 FAILURE TO ACHIEVE MINIMUM INVESTMENT AND JOBS CREATION REQUIREMENTS ........................... 12 
SECTION 4.04 REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT ...................................................................................................................... 12 
SECTION 4.05 FILOT PAYMENTS ON REPLACEMENT PROPERTY .................................................................................. 13 
SECTION 4.06 REDUCTIONS IN PAYMENT OF TAXES UPON DIMINUTION IN VALUE; INVESTMENT MAINTENANCE 

REQUIREMENT ...................................................................................................................................... 13 

ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 
SECTION 5.01 CESSATION OF OPERATIONS ................................................................................................................... 14 
SECTION 5.02 RIGHTS TO INSPECT ................................................................................................................................ 14 
SECTION 5.03 CONFIDENTIALITY ................................................................................................................................. 14 
SECTION 5.04 LIMITATION OF COUNTY’S LIABILITY .................................................................................................... 15 
SECTION 5.05 MERGERS, REORGANIZATIONS AND EQUITY TRANSFERS....................................................................... 15 
SECTION 5.06 INDEMNIFICATION COVENANTS ............................................................................................................. 15 
SECTION 5.07 QUALIFICATION IN STATE ...................................................................................................................... 16 
SECTION 5.08 NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY’S PERSONNEL .............................................................................................. 16 
SECTION 5.09 ASSIGNMENT, LEASES OR TRANSFERS ................................................................................................... 16 
SECTION 5.10 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES ................................................................................................................. 17 
SECTION 5.11 PRIORITY LIEN STATUS .......................................................................................................................... 17 
SECTION 5.12 INTEREST; PENALTIES ............................................................................................................................ 17 
SECTION 5.13 SPONSOR AFFILIATES ............................................................................................................................. 17 

ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 
SECTION 6.01 EVENTS OF DEFAULT ............................................................................................................................. 19 
SECTION 6.02 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT .................................................................................................................... 19 
SECTION 6.03 REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL FEES AND EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENSES ............................................ 20 
SECTION 6.04 NO WAIVER ........................................................................................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 



 

ii 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

SECTION 7.01 NOTICES ................................................................................................................................................. 21 
SECTION 7.02 BINDING EFFECT .................................................................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 7.03 COUNTERPARTS ..................................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.04 GOVERNING LAW ................................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.05 HEADINGS .............................................................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.06 AMENDMENTS ........................................................................................................................................ 22 
SECTION 7.07 FURTHER ASSURANCE ........................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.08 INVALIDITY; CHANGE IN LAWS .............................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.09 TERMINATION BY COMPANY .................................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.10 ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING ...................................................................................................................... 23 
SECTION 7.11 WAIVER ................................................................................................................................................. 23 
SECTION 7.12 BUSINESS DAY ....................................................................................................................................... 23 
SECTION 7.13 FACSIMILE/SCANNED SIGNATURES ........................................................................................................ 23 
 
 
 
 
EXHIBIT A – DESCRIPTION OF LAND 
EXHIBIT B – INVESTMENT AND JOBS CREATION CERTIFICATION 
EXHIBIT C – INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 



 

iii 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

 
 

As permitted under Section 12-44-55(B), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), 
the parties have agreed to waive the requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Code.  The following is a 
summary of the key provisions of this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement.  This 
summary is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a part of this Fee in Lieu of Tax and 
Special Source Credit Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the Code.  
 
 

Company Name: Kelley Engineering, LLC Project Name: Project Yell 
Projected Investment: $6,000,000 Projected Jobs: 80 
Location (street): 709 Highway 17, Piedmont, SC  Tax Map No.: 192-00-06-016 
    
1. FILOT    
 Required Investment: $6,000,00,00 Required Jobs: 80 
 Investment Period: 5 years Ordinance No./Date:  
 Assessment Ratio: 6% Term (years): 30 years 
 Fixed Millage: 332.07 mills 

 
Net Present Value (if 
yes, discount rate): 

 
 

 Clawback information:  
 
 

2. MCIP  
 Included in an MCIP: To be included in Anderson/Greenville Park (2010) 
 If yes, Name & Date:  
  
3. SSC  
 Total Amount:  
 No. of Years 10 years 
    Yearly Increments: 60% years 1-5; 40% years 6-10 
 Clawback information: If the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement and the Contract Minimum Jobs 

Creation Requirement are both not made during the Standard Investment Period, the SSC 
is reduced to 20% for years 6-10; if the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement and 
the Contract Minimum Jobs Creation Requirement are both made by the 7th year, the SSC 
will return to 40% for years 8-10. 

4. Other information  
 
 

 
 



 

 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT (the “Fee 
Agreement”) is made and entered into as of April 19, 2022 by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State 
of South Carolina (the “State”), acting by and through the Anderson County Council (the “County Council”) 
as the governing body of the County, and Kelley Engineering, a limited liability company organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of South Carolina (the “Company”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

1. Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended 
(the “Code”), authorizes the County to (a) induce industries to locate in the State; (b) encourage industries 
now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ manpower, products, 
and other resources of the State; and (c) enter into a fee agreement with entities meeting the requirements of 
the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as economic development property and 
provides for the payment of a fee in lieu of tax with respect to such property. 

2. Sections 4-1-170 and 12-44-70 of the Code authorize the County to provide special source 
revenue credit (“Special Source Revenue Credit”) financing secured by and payable solely from revenues of 
the County derived from payments in lieu of taxes for the purposes set forth in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, 
namely:  the defraying of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the 
infrastructure serving the County and for improved and unimproved real estate, and personal property, 
including but not limited to machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County (collectively, 
“Infrastructure”). 

3. The Company (as a Sponsor, within the meaning of the FILOT Act) desires to provide for 
the acquisition and construction of the Project (as defined herein) to constitute a facility in the County for the 
manufacture of custom automation equipment and related products. 

4. Based on information supplied by the Company, the County Council has evaluated the 
Project based on relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to accomplish, 
the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, employment to be created or maintained, and the 
anticipated costs and benefits to the County. Pursuant to Section 12-44-40(H)(1) of the FILOT Act, the County 
finds that: (a) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally; (b) the 
Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality therein and to 
no charge against their general credit or taxing powers; (c) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are 
proper governmental and public purposes; and (d) the benefits of the Project are greater than the costs. 

5. The Project is located, or if not so located as of the date of this Fee Agreement the County 
intends to use its best efforts to so locate the Project, in a joint county industrial or business park created with 
an adjoining county in the State pursuant to agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4-1-170 of the Code 
and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution. 

6. By enactment of an Ordinance on April 19, 2022, the County Council has authorized the 
County to enter into this Fee Agreement with the Company which classifies the Project as Economic 
Development Property under the FILOT Act and provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes and the 
provision of Special Source Credits to reimburse the Company for payment of the cost of certain Infrastructure 
in connection with the Project, all as further described herein. 



 

2 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:  



 

3 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
Section 1.01  Definitions 
 

The terms that this Article defines shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement have the meanings 
herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 
 
 “Administration Expenses” shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the 
County with respect to this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable attorney fees; provided, 
however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until the County has 
furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the reason it 
has been or will be incurred. 
 
 “Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity which 
owns all or part of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) or which 
is owned in whole or in part by the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) 
or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such 
Sponsor Affiliate), as well as any subsidiary, affiliate, individual or entity who bears a relationship to the 
Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate), as described in Section 267(b) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
 “Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.   
 

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project 
or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day of the property 
tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

“Company” shall mean Kelley Engineering, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company, and 
any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any other 
person or entity which may succeed to the rights and duties of the Company. 

 “Condemnation Event” shall mean any act of taking by a public or quasi-public authority through 
condemnation, reverse condemnation or eminent domain. 
 

“Contract Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, investment 
by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates of at least $6,000,000.00 in Economic Development Property 
subject (non-exempt) to ad valorem taxation (in the absence of this Fee Agreement). 

Contract Minimum Jobs Creation Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, eighty 
(80) new full-time jobs (with benefits) with average wages at or exceeding $22.64 per hour; such jobs being 
in addition to the current forty (40) full-time jobs in the County. 

“County” shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as the 
governing body of the County. 

“County Administrator” shall mean the Anderson County Administrator, or the person holding 
any successor office of the County. 



 

4 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

“County Assessor” shall mean the Anderson County Assessor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

“County Auditor” shall mean the Anderson County Auditor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

“County Council” shall mean Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

“County Treasurer” shall mean the Anderson County Treasurer, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

“Defaulting Entity” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 6.02(a) hereof. 

“Deficiency Amount” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 4.03(a) hereof. 

“Department” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

“Diminution in Value” in respect of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value, using the 
original fair market value (without regard to depreciation) as determined in Step 1 of Section 4.01 of this 
Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute a part of the Project and which are subject to FILOT payments 
which may be caused by the Company’s or any Sponsor Affiliate’s removal and/or disposal of equipment 
pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof, or by its election to remove components of the Project as a result of any 
damage or destruction or any Condemnation Event with respect thereto. 

“Economic Development Property” shall mean those items of real and tangible personal property 
of the Project which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the FILOT Act and 
this Fee Agreement, and selected and identified by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its annual filing 
of a SCDOR PT-300S or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be amended from time 
to time) for each year within the Investment Period. 

“Equipment” shall mean machinery, equipment, furniture, office equipment, and other tangible 
personal property, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto 
or therefor. 

“Event of Default” shall mean any event of default specified in Section 6.01 hereof. 

“Exemption Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year after 
the property tax year in which an applicable portion of Economic Development Property is placed in service 
and ending on the Termination Date.  In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption Period applies 
to each year’s investment made during the Investment Period. 

“Fee Agreement” shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement. 

“FILOT” or “FILOT Payments” shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes as provided herein. 

“FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 



 

5 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

“FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, an 
investment of at least $2,500,000 by the Company, or of at least $5,000,000 by the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates in the aggregate, in Economic Development Property. 

“Improvements” shall mean improvements to the Land, including buildings, building additions, 
roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with any and all additions, fixtures, accessions, 
replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor. 

“Infrastructure” shall mean infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real 
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of the Project, 
within the meaning of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

“Investment Period” shall mean, and shall be equal to, the Standard Investment Period. 

“Land” means the land upon which the Project will be located, as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 3.01(c) hereof. 

“MCIP” shall mean (i) the joint county industrial park established pursuant to the terms of the 
MCIP Agreement and (ii) any joint county industrial park created pursuant to a successor park agreement 
delivered by the County and a partner county in accordance with Section 4-1-170 of the MCIP Act, or any 
successor provision, with respect to the Project. 

“MCIP Act” shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

“MCIP Agreement” shall mean the Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial 
and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, between the County and Greenville County, 
South Carolina, as the same may be further amended or supplemented from time to time, or such other 
agreement as the County may enter with respect to the Project to offer the benefits of the Special Source 
Credits to the Company hereunder. 

 “Phase” or “Phases” in respect of the Project shall mean that the components of the Project are 
placed in service during more than one year during the Investment Period, and the word “Phase” shall 
therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year during the Investment 
Period. 

“Project” shall mean the Land and all the Equipment and Improvements that the Company 
determines to be necessary, suitable or useful for the purposes described in Section 2.02(b) hereof, to the 
extent determined by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate to be a part of the Project and placed in 
service during the Investment Period, and any Replacement Property.  Notwithstanding anything in this Fee 
Agreement to the contrary, the Project shall not include property which will not qualify for the FILOT 
pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the FILOT Act, including without limitation property which has been 
subject to ad valorem taxation in the State prior to commencement of the Investment Period; provided, 
however, the Project may include (a) modifications which constitute an expansion of the real property 
portion of the Project and (b) the property allowed pursuant to Section 12-44-110(2) of the FILOT Act. 

“Removed Components” shall mean components of the Project or portions thereof which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its sole discretion, elects to remove from the Project pursuant to 
Section 4.04 hereof or as a result of any Condemnation Event. 



 

6 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

“Replacement Property” shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for 
any item of Equipment or any Improvement previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of whether 
such property serves the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether more than 
one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement to the fullest extent that the 
FILOT Act permits. 

“Special Source Credits” shall mean the annual special source credits provided to the Company 
pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof.   

“Sponsor Affiliate” shall mean an entity that joins with the Company and that participates in the 
investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the FILOT Act to be 
entitled to the benefits of this Fee Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project, all as set forth 
in Section 5.13 hereof. 

“Standard Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase 
or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement Date.   

“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

“Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the end of the last day 
of the property tax year which is the 29th year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of 
the Project is placed in service; provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at 
least 30 annual FILOT payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project; and 
provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Termination Date shall mean the date of such termination. 

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, as 
amended or supplemented from time to time, concerning, among other things, the necessity of obtaining 
County consent to certain transfers. 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 

Section 1.02  Project-Related Investments 
 
 The term “investment” or “invest” as used herein shall include not only investments made by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments 
made by or for the benefit of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through 
federal, state, or local grants, to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes or FILOT 
payments by the Company. 

 
[End of Article I] 

  



 

7 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

ARTICLE II 
 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 2.01  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County 
 
 The County hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and acts 
through the County Council as its governing body. The County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has 
obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its 
obligations hereunder. 

(b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a “project” within the 
meaning of the FILOT Act. 

(c) The County has agreed that each item of real and tangible personal property comprising 
the Project which is eligible to be economic development property under the FILOT Act and that the 
Company selects shall be considered Economic Development Property and is thereby exempt from ad 
valorem taxation in the State. 

(d) The millage rate set forth in Step 3 of Section 4.01(a) hereof is 332.07 mills, which is the 
millage rate in effect with respect to the location of the proposed Project as of June 30, 2022, as permitted 
under Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) of the FILOT Act. 

(e) The County will use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Project to be located in a MCIP 
for a term extending at least until the end of the period of FILOT Payments against which a Special Source 
Credit is to be provided under this Fee Agreement. 

Section 2.02  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company 
 

The Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The Company is organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of South 
Carolina, is duly authorized to transact business in the State, has power to enter into this Fee Agreement, 
and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project as a “project” within the meaning of the FILOT 
Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to operate the Project for the purpose of a 
distribution/manufacturing facility, and for such other purposes that the FILOT Act permits as the Company 
may deem appropriate. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County has been instrumental in 
inducing the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

(d) The Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to meet, or cause to be met the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period. 

[End of Article II]  



 

8 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

ARTICLE III 
 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 
 
Section 3.01      The Project 
 

(a) The Company intends and expects, together with any Sponsor Affiliate, to (i) construct and 
acquire the Project, (ii) meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement, and (iii) meet the Contract 
Minimum Jobs Creation Requirement, all within the Investment Period. The Company anticipates that the 
first Phase of the Project will be placed in service during the calendar year ending December 31, 2023. 

(b) Pursuant to the FILOT Act and subject to Section 4.03 hereof, the Company and the County 
hereby agree that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall identify annually those assets which are 
eligible for FILOT payments under the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement, and which the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate selects for such treatment by listing such assets in its annual PT-300S form (or 
comparable form) to be filed with the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) and that by 
listing such assets, such assets shall automatically become Economic Development Property and therefore 
be exempt from all ad valorem taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained in this Fee 
Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall not be obligated 
to complete the acquisition of the Project. However, if the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, 
does not meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment Period, the provisions 
of Section 4.03 hereof shall control. 

(c) The Company may add to the Land such real property, located in the same taxing District 
in the County as the original Land, as the Company, in its discretion, deems useful or desirable. In such 
event, the Company, at its expense, shall deliver an appropriately revised Exhibit A to this Fee Agreement, 
in form reasonably acceptable to the County. 

Section 3.02  Diligent Completion 
 

The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon as 
practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Investment Period. 

Section 3.03  Filings and Reports 
 

(a) Each year during the term of the Fee Agreement, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County Treasurer a copy of 
their most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than thirty (30) 
days following delivery thereof to the Department. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the completed 
Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor, and to their 
counterparts in the partner county to the MCIP Agreement, the County Administrator and the Department 
within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by all parties hereto. 

(c) Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree to maintain complete books and 
records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project.  Such books 
and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) confirm 
the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made by the 
Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates in accordance with Section 3.03(a) or (b) above with respect to 
property placed in service as part of the Project. 



 

9 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

[End of Article III]  



 

10 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

ARTICLE IV 
 

FILOT PAYMENTS 
 
Section 4.01  FILOT Payments 
 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the FILOT Act, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, 
as applicable, are required to make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes to the County with respect to the 
Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates an initial investment of sums 
sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under Section 12-44-50(A)(1) of the 
FILOT Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the FILOT Payments in 
accordance therewith. The Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall make payments in lieu 
of ad valorem taxes on all Economic Development Property which comprises the Project and is placed in 
service, as follows: the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall make payments in lieu of 
ad valorem taxes during the Exemption Period with respect to the Economic Development Property or, if 
there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to each Phase of the Economic 
Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and payable and subject to penalty 
assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the County for ad valorem taxes. 
The determination of the amount of such annual FILOT Payments shall be in accordance with the following 
procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures required by the FILOT Act): 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Economic Development Property (or Phase of the 
Economic Development Property) placed in service during the Exemption Period using original income tax 
basis for State income tax purposes for any real property and Improvements without regard to depreciation 
(provided, the fair market value of real property, as the FILOT Act defines such term, that the Company 
and any Sponsor Affiliates obtains by construction or purchase in an arms-length transaction is equal to the 
original income tax basis, and otherwise, the determination of the fair market value is by appraisal) and 
original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal property less depreciation for each 
year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary obsolescence shall be allowable.  The 
fair market value of the real property for the first year of the Exemption Period remains the fair market 
value of the real property and Improvements for the life of the Exemption Period.  The determination of 
these values shall take into account all applicable property tax exemptions that State law would allow to 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates if the property were taxable, except those exemptions that Section 
12-44-50(A)(2) of the FILOT Act specifically disallows. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent (6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to establish 
the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic Development 
Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such longer period of 
years in which the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement permit the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates to 
make annual FILOT payments. 

Step 3: Use a millage rate of 332.07 mills during the Exemption Period against the taxable value 
to determine the amount of the FILOT Payments due during the Exemption Period on the applicable 
payment dates. 



 

11 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

(b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further 
appeal is allowable declares the FILOT Act and/or the herein-described FILOT Payments invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such 
payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof (without increasing the amount of incentives 
being afforded herein) and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits to be 
derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates a 
strong inducement to locate the Project in the County.  If the Economic Development Property is deemed 
to be subject to ad valorem taxation, this Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates shall pay the County regular ad valorem taxes from the date of termination, but with appropriate 
reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates.  
Any amount determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates, 
with respect to a year or years for which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates previously remitted FILOT 
Payments to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into account all applicable tax exemptions to which the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled if the Economic Development Property was not and 
had not been Economic Development Property under the Act; and (ii) be reduced by the total amount of 
FILOT Payments the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates had made with respect to the Project pursuant to 
the terms hereof.  

Section 4.02  Special Source Credits 
 

(a) In accordance with and pursuant to Section 12-44-70 of the FILOT Act and Section 4-1-
175 of the MCIP Act, in order to reimburse the Company for qualifying capital expenditures incurred for 
costs of the Infrastructure during the Standard Investment Period, the Company shall be entitled to receive, 
and the County agrees to provide, annual Special Source Credits against the Company’s FILOT Payments 
for a period of ten (10) consecutive years in an amount equal to sixty percent (60%) for years 1 through 5 
and forty percent (40%) for years 6 through 10 of that portion of FILOT Payments payable by the Company 
with respect to the Project (that is, with respect to investment made by the Company in the Project during the 
Standard Investment Period), calculated and applied after payment of the amount due the non-host county 
under the MCIP Agreement. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the Company 
be entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion of the investment in the 
Project for which a Special Source Credit is taken. 

(c) In no event shall the aggregate amount of all Special Source Credits claimed by the Company 
exceed the amount expended with respect to the Infrastructure at any point in time. The Company shall be 
responsible for making written annual certification as to compliance with the provisions of the preceding 
sentence through the delivery of a certification in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C.  

(d) As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to the extent any Special Source Credit is taken 
against fee in lieu of tax payment on personal property, and the personal property is removed from the Project 
at any time during the term of this Fee Agreement (and not replaced with qualifying replacement property), the 
amount of the fee in lieu of taxes due on the personal property for the year in which the personal property was 
removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years immediately following such removal. 

(e) Each annual Special Source Credit shall be reflected by the County Auditor or other 
authorized County official or representative on each bill for FILOT Payments sent to the Company by the 
County for each applicable property tax year, by reducing such FILOT Payments otherwise due by the 
amount of the Special Source Credit to be provided to the Company for such property tax year. 



 

12 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

(f) The Special Source Credits are payable solely from the FILOT Payments, are not secured 
by, or in any way entitled to, a pledge of the full faith, credit or taxing power of the County, are not an 
indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory limitation, 
are payable solely from a special source that does not include revenues from any tax or license, and are not 
a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the County. 

(g) All fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes pursuant to the agreement received by the County for 
MCIP premises located in the County attributable to current MCIP property shall be distributed in 
accordance with Section 3 of Ordinance 2010-026 and Paragraph 7 of the MCIP Agreement.  All fee-in lieu 
of ad valorem  taxes pursuant to the agreement received by the County for MCIP premises located in the 
County attributable to MCIP property added on and after November 16, 2020 shall be distributed, net of 
special source credits provided by the County pursuant to Section 4-1-175 (“Net Park Fees”) as follows: 
First, 15% of Net Park Fees shall be deposited to Bond Fund created by Ordinance 2018-042 and used as 
required or permitted thereby, Second, 35% of Net Park Fees, and any surplus money under Ordinance 
2018-042, shall be deposited to the Capital Renewal and Replacement Fund of the County, and Third, 
remaining Net Park Fees shall be disbursed to each of the taxing entitles in the County which levy an old 
ad valorem property tax in any of the areas comprising the County’s portion of the MCIP in the same 
percentage as is equal to that taxing entity’s percentage of the millage rate (and proportion of operating and 
debt service millage) being levied in the current tax year for property tax purposes. 

Section 4.03  Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment and Jobs Creation Requirement 
 

(a) Should the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement or the Contract Minimum Jobs 
Creation Requirement not be met by the Company by the end of the Standard Investment Period, any 
subsequent Special Source Credits shall be reduced to twenty percent (20%) of that portion of FILOT 
Payments payable by the Company with respect to the Project (that is, with respect to investment made by the 
Company in the Project during the Investment Period), calculated and applied after payment of the amount 
due the non-host county under the MCIP Agreement; except, however, if the Contract Minimum Investment 
Requirement and the Contract Minimum Jobs Creation Requirement are both met by the end of the seventh 
(7th) tax year following the Commencement Date, then the Special Source Credits going forward shall return 
to forty percent (40%) for years 8 through 10.  Any portion of Special Source Credits lost because of a 
failure to meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement or the Contract Minimum Jobs Creation 
Requirement by the end of the Standard Investment Period shall not be recoverable by the Company or its 
Sponsor Affiliates. 

 (b)  As a condition to the FILOT benefit provided herein, the Company agrees to provide the 
County Administrator, the County Assessor, the County Auditor and the County Treasurer with an annual 
certification as to investment in the Project. Such certification shall be in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be due no later than the May 1 following the immediately preceding December 
31 of each year during the Investment Period. 

Section 4.04  Removal of Equipment 
 

Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components of the Project from the Project in 
its sole discretion with the result that said components shall no longer be considered a part of the Project 
and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to the terms 
of this Fee Agreement.  Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is scrapped or sold or 



 

13 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to ad valorem property taxes to the 
extent the Property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to ad valorem property taxes. 

Section 4.05  FILOT Payments on Replacement Property 
 

If the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate elects to replace any Removed Components and to 
substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic Development 
Property, or the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate otherwise utilizes Replacement Property, then, pursuant 
and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act, the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall make statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard to such Replacement Property in 
accordance with the following: 

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the Economic 
Development Property it is replacing.  Replacement Property is deemed to replace the oldest 
Economic Development Property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is disposed of 
in the same property tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service.  Replacement 
Property qualifies as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the original income tax 
basis of Economic Development Property which is being disposed of in the same property tax year.  
More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic Development Property.  
To the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property exceeds the original income 
tax basis of the Economic Development Property which it is replacing, the excess amount is subject 
to annual payments calculated as if the exemption for Economic Development Property were not 
allowable.  Replacement Property is entitled to treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period 
of time remaining during the Exemption Period for the Economic Development Property which it 
is replacing; and 

(ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the FILOT shall be recorded 
using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the FILOT shall utilize the millage rate and 
assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the FILOT. 

Section 4.06  Reductions in Payment of Taxes Upon Diminution in Value; Investment Maintenance 
Requirement 

 
In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property, the Payment in Lieu 

of Taxes with regard to the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the same proportion as the 
amount of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the Economic Development 
Property as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.01(a) hereof; provided, however, that if at any time 
subsequent to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project remaining in the County based 
on the original income tax basis thereof (that is, without regard to depreciation), is less than the FILOT Act 
Minimum Investment Requirement, then beginning with the first payment thereafter due hereunder and 
continuing until the Termination Date, the Project shall no longer be entitled to the incentive provided in 
Section 4.01, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate shall therefore commence to pay regular ad 
valorem taxes thereon, calculated as set forth in Section 4.01(b) hereof.   

[End of Article IV]  



 

14 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

 
ARTICLE V 

 
PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

 
Section 5.01  Cessation of Operations 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates acknowledges and agrees that County’s obligation to provide the FILOT incentive may end, and 
this Fee Agreement may be terminated by the County, at the County’s sole discretion, if the Company 
ceases operations at the Project; provided, however, that the Special Source Credits provided for in this Fee 
Agreement shall automatically terminate if the Company ceases operations as set forth in this Section 5.01.  
For purposes of this Section, “ceases operations” means closure of the facility or the cessation of production 
and shipment of products to customers for a continuous period of twelve (12) months.  The provisions of 
Section 4.03 hereof relating to retroactive payments shall apply, if applicable, if this Fee Agreement is 
terminated in accordance with this Section prior to the end of the Investment Period.  Each of the Company 
and any Sponsor Affiliates agrees that if this Fee Agreement is terminated pursuant to this subsection, that 
under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund or pay any monies to the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliates. 

Section 5.02  Rights to Inspect 
 

The Company agrees that the County and its authorized agents shall have the right at all reasonable 
times and upon prior reasonable notice to enter upon and examine and inspect the Project. The County and 
its authorized agents shall also be permitted, at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice, to 
have access to examine and inspect the Company’s South Carolina property tax returns, as filed. The 
aforesaid rights of examination and inspection shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and necessary 
terms and conditions as the Company shall prescribe, and shall be subject to the provisions of Section 5.03 
hereof. 

Section 5.03  Confidentiality 
 

The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may 
utilize confidential and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and 
techniques (herein “Confidential Information”). In this regard, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County “Confidential Information.”  The 
County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor 
of the County shall disclose or otherwise divulge any such clearly labeled Confidential Information to any 
other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so 
by law.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge that the County is subject to the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and 
information on request, absent an exemption. In the event that the County is required to disclose any 
Confidential Information obtained from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates to any third party, the 
County agrees to provide the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates with as much advance notice as is 
reasonably possible of such requirement before making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with 
any attempts by the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates to obtain judicial or other relief from such 
disclosure requirement. 



 

15 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

Section 5.04  Limitation of County’s Liability 
 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any financial obligation the County may incur 
hereunder, including for the payment of money, shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or a 
debt or general obligation of the County (it being intended herein that any obligations of the County with 
respect to the Special Source Credits shall be payable only from FILOT payments received from or payable 
by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates); provided, however, that nothing herein shall prevent the 
Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

Section 5.05  Mergers, Reorganizations and Equity Transfers 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that any mergers, reorganizations 
or consolidations of the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates may cause the Project to become ineligible 
for negotiated fees in lieu of taxes under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions; provided that, to the extent provided by Section 12-44-120 
of the FILOT Act or any successor provision, any financing arrangements entered into by the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliates with respect to the Project and any security interests granted by the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliates in connection therewith shall not be construed as a transfer for purposes of the Transfer 
Provisions.  Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, it is not intended in this Fee 
Agreement that the County shall impose transfer restrictions with respect to the Company, any Sponsor 
Affiliates or the Project as are any more restrictive than the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.06  Indemnification Covenants 
 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements 
with the County, the Company agrees to indemnify, defend and save the County, its County Council 
members, elected officials, officers, employees, servants and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified 
Parties”) harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation arising 
from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project or the Land by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, their members, officers, shareholders, employees, servants, contractors, 
and agents during the Term, and, the Company further, shall indemnify, defend and save the Indemnified 
Parties harmless against and from all claims arising during the Term from (i) entering into and performing 
its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (ii) any condition of the Project, (iii) any breach or default on the 
part of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in the performance of any of its obligations under this Fee 
Agreement, (iv) any act of negligence of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or its agents, contractors, 
servants, employees or licensees, (v) any act of negligence of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate, or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees of any assignee or lessee 
of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or (vi) any environmental violation, condition, or effect with 
respect to the Project.  The Company shall indemnify, defend and save the County harmless from and 
against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim arising as aforesaid or in 
connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice from the County, the Company 
shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County 
(the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld). 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties 
shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Fee Agreement, or the undertakings required 
of the County hereunder, by reason of the granting of the FILOT, by reason of the execution of this Fee 
Agreement, by the reason of the performance of any act requested of it by the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, or by reason of the County’s relationship to the Project or by the operation of the Project by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in connection with the 
violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the County or any of the 



 

16 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

other Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event the Company shall 
indemnify, defend and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or 
corporation, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection with any such claim 
or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the Company shall defend 
them in any such action or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County (the approval of which 
shall not be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that such indemnity shall not apply to the extent 
that any such claim is attributable to (i) the grossly negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the 
County, its agents, officers or employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee Agreement by the County. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the above-referenced 
covenants insofar as they pertain to costs, damages, liabilities or claims by any Indemnified Party resulting 
from any of the above-described acts of or failure to act by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, shall 
survive any termination of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 5.07  Qualification in State 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates warrant that it is duly qualified to do business in 
the State, and covenants that it will continue to be so qualified so long as it operates any portion of the 
Project. 

Section 5.08  No Liability of County’s Personnel 
 

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained herein 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and shall 
be binding upon any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and no 
recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing body 
of the County or any elected official, officer, agent, servants or employee of the County and no recourse 
shall be had against any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the County herein 
contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 5.09  Assignment, Leases or Transfers 
 

The County agrees that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may at any time (a) transfer all or 
any of their rights and interests under this Fee Agreement or with respect to all or any part of the Project, 
or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of such 
arrangements with any financing or other entity with respect to this Fee Agreement or all or any part of the 
Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, synthetic 
lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar arrangement or 
succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of such portion of the 
Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases the portion of the Project in question to the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or operates such assets for the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or is 
leasing the portion of the Project in question from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate.  In order to 
preserve the FILOT benefit afforded hereunder with respect to any portion of the Project so transferred, 
leased, financed, or otherwise affected: (i) except in connection with any transfer to an Affiliate of the 
Company or of any Sponsor Affiliate, or transfers, leases, or financing arrangements pursuant to clause (b) 
above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, 
as applicable, shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent ratification of the County which consent or 
subsequent ratification may be granted by the County in its sole discretion and as evidenced by resolution 
passed by the County Council; (ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or 



 

17 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

part of the Project is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) above and such financing entity assumes in writing 
the obligations of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, hereunder, or when the County 
consents in writing, no such transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates hereunder; (iii) to the extent the transferee or financing entity shall become obligated to 
make FILOT Payments hereunder, the transferee shall assume the then current basis of, as the case may be, 
the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates (or prior transferee) in the portion of the Project transferred; (iv) 
the Company or applicable Sponsor Affiliate, transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) days 
thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department a true and complete copy of any 
such transfer agreement; and (v) the Company, the Sponsor Affiliates and the transferee shall comply with 
all other requirements of the Transfer Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required under this Section, and at the expense of the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, the County agrees to take such further action or execute such 
further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the assumption 
by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate under this Fee 
Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this Section.   

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest 
under this Fee Agreement or in the Project may cause all or part of the Project to become ineligible for the 
FILOT benefit afforded hereunder or result in penalties under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions.   

Section 5.10  Administration Expenses 
 

The Company agrees to pay any Administration Expenses to the County when and as they shall 
become due, but in no event later than the date which is the earlier of any payment date expressly provided 
for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the 
County, accompanied by such supporting documentation as may be necessary to evidence the County’s or 
Indemnified Party’s right to receive such payment, specifying the nature of such expense and requesting 
payment of same. 

Section 5.11  Priority Lien Status 
 

The County’s right to receive FILOT payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status 
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the FILOT Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51, 53, and 54 of Title 12 
of the Code. 

Section 5.12  Interest; Penalties 
 

In the event the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments to the 
County required under this Fee Agreement, then the item or installment so in default shall continue as an 
obligation of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate until the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall 
have fully paid the amount, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree, as applicable, to pay the 
same with interest thereon at a rate, unless expressly provided otherwise herein and in the case of FILOT 
payments, of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was due 
and, in the case of FILOT payments, at the rate for non-payment of ad valorem taxes under State law and 
subject to the penalties the law provides until payment. 
 
Section 5.13  Sponsor Affiliates 
 



 

18 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

The Company may designate from time to time any Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 12-44-30(20) and 12-44-130 of the FILOT Act, which Sponsor Affiliates shall join with the 
Company and make investments with respect to the Project, or participate in the financing of such 
investments, and shall agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement pursuant to the 
terms of a written joinder agreement with the County and the Company, in form reasonably acceptable to 
the County.  The Company shall provide the County and the Department with written notice of any Sponsor 
Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section within ninety (90) days after the end of the calendar year during 
which any such Sponsor Affiliate has placed in service any portion of the Project, in accordance with 
Section 12-44-130(B) of the FILOT Act. 
 

[End of Article V]  



 

19 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

ARTICLE VI 
 

DEFAULT 
 
Section 6.01  Events of Default 
 

The following shall be “Events of Default” under this Fee Agreement, and the term “Event of 
Default” shall mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the following 
occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to make the FILOT Payments described 
in Section 4.01 hereof, or any other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement when due, 
which failure shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof 
from the County; provided, however, that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to all 
redemption rights granted by applicable statutes; or 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate hereunder 
which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or  

(c) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to perform any of the terms, conditions, 
obligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above), which failure shall continue for a 
period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the County to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliate 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until 
the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period 
during which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate is diligently pursuing corrective action; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the 
Company to the County and any Sponsor Affiliates specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently 
pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to 
cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action. 
 
Section 6.02  Remedies Upon Default 
 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate (the “Defaulting 
Entity”) shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of the following 
remedial actions as to the Defaulting Entity, only: 

(i) terminate this Fee Agreement; or 
 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the amounts due hereunder.   

In no event shall the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate be liable to the County or otherwise for 
monetary damages resulting from the Company’s (together with any Sponsor Affiliates) failure to meet the 
Contract Minimum Investment Requirement other than as expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement. 

 In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make FILOT payments shall give 
rise to a lien for tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the FILOT Act.  In this regard, and 



 

20 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies that 
general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code) provides with regard to the enforced collection of 
ad valorem taxes to collect any FILOT payments due hereunder. 

(b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate may take one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 
 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement as to the acting party; or 
 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 6.03  Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses 
 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
should the County be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of 
payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or 
agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred.   

Section 6.04  No Waiver 
 

No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power, or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power, 
or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or remedy 
hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in writing and 
signed by the waiving party hereto. 
 

[End of Article VI]  



 

21 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

ARTICLE VII 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Section 7.01  Notices 
 

Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United 
States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), 
except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such provision 
shall control: 

 
If to the Company: 
 
Kelley Engineering, LLC 
Attn: Matt Kelley 
709 Highway 17 
Piedmont, South Carolina 29673 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Nexsen Pruet, LLC 
Attn: James K. Price 
104 South Main Street, Suite 900 
Greenville, South Carolina 29601 
 
If to the County: 
 

 Anderson County 
Attn: County Administrator 

 P.O. Box 8002  
Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Anderson County Attorney 

 P.O. Box 8002  
Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 

 
Section 7.02  Binding Effect 
 

This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns.  In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of the 
County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other such 
political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee Agreement 
shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any entity, officer, 
board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of the County has 
been transferred. 



 

22 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

Section 7.03  Counterparts 
 

This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.04  Governing Law 
 

This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 7.05  Headings 
 

The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are inserted for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.06  Amendments 
 

The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended in writing by any 
agreement or agreements entered into between the parties. 

Section 7.07  Further Assurance 
 

From time to time, and at the expense of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County 
agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates such additional instruments 
as the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the 
purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.08  Invalidity; Change in Laws 
 

In the event that the inclusion of property as Economic Development Property or any other issue is 
unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of this 
Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the terms of 
this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the FILOT Act, to the extent not 
inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof.  If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and such 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most closely the legal, valid, and 
enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the maximum 
benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions of the FILOT Act, to locate the Project 
in the County.  In case a change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws eliminates or reduces any of the 
restrictions or limitations applicable to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates and the FILOT incentive, 
the parties agree that the County will give expedient and full consideration to reformation of this Fee 
Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to provide the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with 
the benefits of such change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws. 

Section 7.09  Termination by Company 
 

The Company is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or part 
of the Project upon providing the County with thirty (30) days’ written notice; provided, however, that (i) 
any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and owing at the time of termination to a party hereto 



 

23 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

(including without limitation any amounts owed with respect to Section 4.03 hereof); and (ii) any provisions 
which are intended to survive termination shall survive such termination. In the year following such 
termination, all property shall be subject to ad valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu of 
taxation that would apply absent this Fee Agreement. The Company’s obligation to make FILOT Payments 
under this Fee Agreement shall terminate in the year following the year of such termination pursuant to this 
section. 

Section 7.10  Entire Understanding 
 

This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto 
with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation 
to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates delivered in 
connection with the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 7.11  Waiver 
 

Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee 
Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 7.12  Business Day 
 

In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to 
be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in 
which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or 
given on the following business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest 
shall accrue in the interim. 

Section 7.13      Facsimile/Scanned Signatures 
 

The parties agree that use of a fax or scanned signature and the signatures, initials, and handwritten 
or typewritten modifications to any of the foregoing shall be deemed to be valid and binding upon the 
parties as if the original signature, initials and handwritten or typewritten modifications were present on the 
documents in the handwriting of each party. 

 [End of Article VII] 
 
  



 

24 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the Chairman of County Council and to be 
attested by the Clerk of the County Council; and the Company has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed 
by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
 
 ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
(SEAL)      By:       

     Tommy Dunn, Chairman of County Council, 
     Anderson County, South Carolina 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Renee D. Watts, Clerk to County Council, 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature Page 1 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

 
 
  



 

25 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

 KELLEY ENGINEERING, LLC 
 
        
 By:  Matt Kelley 
 Its:  CEO 

 

 

 

[Signature Page 2 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

 

 



 

A-1 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
ALL that certain piece, parcel or lot of land situate, lying and being in the State of South Carolina, County 
of Anderson, being known as 709 Highway 17, Piedmont, SC 29673 as shown and designated on plat 
entitled “Survey and Certification for Kelley Ventures, LLC” prepared by NuSouth Surveying, Inc., Earl 
B. O'Brien, PLS #10755, dated March 27, 2017, and recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Anderson County, South Carolina in Plat Slide 2356 at Page I, and having the metes and bounds, courses 
and distances as upon said plat appear.  
 
TMS # 192-00-06-016 
 



 

B-1 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

INVESTMENT AND JOBS CREATION CERTIFICATION 
 
 

 I __________, the __________ of Kelley Engineering, LLC (the “Company”), do hereby certify 
in connection with Section 4.03 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 
__________, 2022 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the “Agreement”), as 
follows: 
 
 (1) The total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the Project 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 20__ was $___________. 
 
 (2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the 
Project from the period beginning __________, 20__ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment Period) 
and ending December 31, 20__, is $__________. 
 
 (3) The number of new, full-time jobs created at the Project since _____________, 20__ (the 
beginning date of the Investment Period) is _____ persons and their average wage exceeds $22.64 per hour.  
The total number of employees of the Company at the Project as of December 31, 20__ is ___ .  
 
 All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 
 
 
             
      Name:       
      Its:       

 
 
 



 

C-1 
NPGVL1:2178981.3  

EXHIBIT C 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

 I __________, the __________ of Kelley Engineering, LLC (the “Company”), do hereby certify 
in connection with Section 4.02 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 
__________, 2022 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the “Agreement”), as 
follows: 
 
 (1) As of the date hereof, the aggregate amount of Special Source Credits previously received 
by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates is $_________. 
 
 (2) As of December 31, 20__, the aggregate amount of investment in costs of Infrastructure 
incurred by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period is not less than 
$_________. 

 
 (3) Of the total amount set forth in (2) above, $________ pertains to the investment in personal 
property, including machinery and equipment, at the Project.  The applicable personal property, and 
associated expenditures, are listed below: 
 

Personal Property Description  Investment Amount 
   
   
   
   

 
 All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 
 
       
             
      Name:       
      Its:       
 
 
 
 































 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2022-013 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 38 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR DRAINAGE 
AND UTILITY EASEMENTS TO CONVEY STORMWATER AND PROVIDE FOR 
LOCATION OF OTHER ULTILITIES IN DEVELOPMENTS WITHIN ANDERSON 
COUNTY; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council has the authority and duty pursuant to state 
law to provide for the general health, safety and welfare of Anderson County and to exercise its 
police powers therefor; 
 
 WHEREAS, a more systematic approach is desirable for providing for appropriate 
conveyance of stormwater and for the location of utility systems within developments located 
within the County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council desires to amend the Anderson County Code, 
Chapter 38, so as to appropriately provide for the stormwater conveyance and location of other 
utilities within developments located within the County. 
 
 NOW, THERFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. That the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, is hereby amended 
by adding sections to be numbered 38-360 and 38-361, which sections read as follows: 
 
 Sec. 38-360.-Drainage and Utility Easements. 
 

a. The width, length and location of all easements for drainage and utilities shall be 
established by the appropriate agency involved and shown on the final plat. 
 
b. A 5-foot drainage and utility easement is required on each side of all interior and 
rear lot lines. A 10 foot drainage and utility easement is required along all exterior 
lot lines.  If an adjoining subdivision has already dedicated a rear 5-foot easement; 
the 10-foot easement may be reduced to 5 feet. 
 
c. An easement acts as a reciprocal agreement between the subdivision property 
owners.  Each property owner is responsible for maintaining such easement on the 
property.  Drainage and utility easements are intended to be reciprocal easements 
among the subdivision property owners and not a dedication to the County.  
Property owners are responsible for keeping easements intact and clear of debris or 
structures.  Easements should not be altered in any manner. 
 
 
 



Sec. 38-361.-Conveyance System. 
 
a. Offsite stormwater that flows through a proposed subdivision must be routed 
through a designed conveyance system with a designated easement preferably 
through a common area. 
 
b. Internal conveyance systems must also be within a designated easement or a 
common area. 
 
c. The conveyance system easements are intended to be reciprocal easements and 
not a dedication to the County. 
 

2. That Section 38-332(4) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
 Sec. 38-332-Final Plat. 
 

All final plats submitted for approval must contain, in addition to all requirements 
for preliminary plats, the following information: 
 
(4) In the absence of a specific engineering stormwater plan as a minimum, 5 foot 
drainage and utility easements shall be established along all side and interior rear 
property lines; 10 foot easements established along exterior boundary of the 
subdivision unless adjoining property owners have established easements. 
 

 3. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 4. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the rest 
and remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 5. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the third reading and 
enactment of by Anderson County Council. 
  



ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ________ day of _________, 2022. 

______________________________  
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

ATTEST:  

_____________________________   
Rusty Burns  
Anderson County Administrator 

_____________________________ 
Renee Watts  
Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney  

First Reading: April 5, 2022

 Second Reading: ________________ 

Third Reading: __________________ 

Public Hearing: __________________ 



ORDINANCE NO.:  2022-014 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE A GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS, LLC 
FOR A PORTION OF TAX MAP NO. 122-00-01-001, THE CIVIC CENTER PARCEL, 
FOR LOCATION OF A BATTERY STORAGE SYSTEM PROJECT; AND OTHER 
RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 
County Council (the “County Council”) is authorized under Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, as amended, to lease, sell or otherwise dispose of real property owned by the County; 
 
 WHEREAS, the County proposes to lease to Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC (“Duke 
Energy”) a portion of the Civic Center property for purposes of development of a battery storage 
system project which would include backup power to the Civic Center in the event of a power 
outage; and 
 
 WHEREAS, enhanced backup power to the Civic Center during a power outage is a 
desirable feature for the Civic Center since it is used for various services and uses. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. The Anderson County Council hereby approves the ground lease of a portion of 
Tax Parcel 122-00-01-001, the Anderson County Civic Center Project, as shown on Exhibit A 
attached hereto, for purposes of development of an energy storage system project.  The Ground 
Lease Agreement is attached as Exhibit B.  The County Administrator is hereby authorized, 
empowered, and directed to execute, acknowledge, and deliver all documents in the name of and 
on behalf of the County to carry out the transaction authorized by this Ordinance. 
 
 2. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the rest 
and remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the third reading and 
enactment of by Anderson County Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ________ day of _________, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns        Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts    
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
 
First Reading: April 5, 2022 
 
Second Reading: ________________ 
 
Third Reading: __________________ 
 
Public Hearing: __________________ 
 



 
1 

#5265596v5 

 
GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
THIS GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Lease”) is made and entered into as of the _____ 

day of ______, ______ (the “Effective Date”), by and between Anderson County, a body politic and 
corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the “Landlord”) and DUKE ENERGY, 
LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company (the “Tenant”). 

Landlord and Tenant covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Land and Intended Use.  In consideration of the rents, terms, covenants, and agreements 
set forth in this Lease to be paid, kept, and performed, Landlord leases to Tenant and Tenant leases from 
Landlord approximately 0.4  acres of land (being a portion of Tax Parcel No. 1220001001), located in the 
City of Anderson, Anderson County, South Carolina,  more particularly described and/or depicted on 
Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the “Land”), to be occupied and used upon 
the terms and conditions herein set forth.  Tenant’s intended use of the Land is for the development, 
construction, installation, operation and maintenance of an energy storage system and related improvements 
for the storage of electric power and related ancillary technologies, including but not limited to, solar 
photovoltaic power arrays, voltage regulation, and power quality regulation (the “Intended Use”), and 
including, without limitation, (i) electrical and communication lines, transformers, power inverters, 
equipment, cables, switches and electrical substation(s); (ii) laydown areas, control buildings, and 
maintenance facilities; and (iii) roads, fences and gates, and other structures and facilities required for 
ingress and egress for pedestrians, motor vehicles and equipment and for security (collectively the “Battery 
System”). 

 
 2. Term of Lease, Commencement Date, and Renewal Term.   

(a) Term of Lease and Commencement Date.  The term of this Lease (including any extensions 
or renewals, the “Term”) shall commence on the Commencement Date and shall end at 11:59 P.M. local 
time on the date that is twenty (20) years after the Commencement Date (the “Expiration Date”), unless 
extended or sooner terminated as herein provided.  If the Expiration Date is other than the last day of a 
calendar month, the Term shall be extended automatically until 11:59 P.M. local time on the last day of the 
calendar month in which the Term otherwise would expire.  The “Commencement Date” shall be the 
Commercial Operation Date.  The “Commercial Operation Date” shall be the date that all of the following 
have occurred: (i) the Energy Storage System has been installed, constructed, tested, commissioned, and is 
fully capable of being operated for its Intended Use; (ii) the Tenant has received all permits and approvals 
from governmental authorities having jurisdiction and the applicable electrical transmission provider for 
the Energy Storage System; and (iii) the Energy Storage System begins delivering electricity to the 
electrical grid.  Once the Commencement Date is ascertained, the parties agree to execute a memorandum 
or other writing confirming the Commencement Date. 

(b) Renewal Terms.  Tenant shall have the right to extend the initial Term granted herein for 
one (1) additional terms of five (5) years  (the “Renewal Term” ) by providing Landlord with written notice 
of Tenant’s desire to extend the Term for the applicable Renewal Term prior to the Expiration Date.    

 3. Due Diligence Period; Construction Period; and Landlord’s Rights Before 
Construction Commencement Date.   

 (a) Due Diligence Period.  Commencing on the Effective Date and continuing for a period of 
one (1) year after the Effective Date (the “Initial Due Diligence Period), Tenant shall have the right to enter 
the Land to perform its due diligence, inspection, investigation and pre-construction activities to determine 



 
2 

#5265596v5 

if the Land is suitable for leasing by Tenant, the Intended Use, and obtaining permits and approvals for the 
Intended Use. Tenant may extend the Initial Due Diligence Period for one (1) additional year commencing 
after the expiration date of the Initial Due Diligence Period (the “Extended Due Diligence Period”), by 
delivering written notice to Landlord prior to the expiration date of the Initial Due Diligence Period. (The 
Initial Due Diligence Period and Extended Due Diligence Period are collectively referred to herein as the 
“Due Diligence Period”). 

(b) Construction Period. The “Construction Period” shall commence upon the Construction 
Commencement Date (as hereinafter defined) and expire upon the Commercial Operation Date (which is 
the same date as the Commencement Date of the Term of this Lease). The “Construction Commencement 
Date” shall be the earlier of (i) the date Tenant issues written notice to Landlord advising Landlord of 
Tenant’s intent to begin construction activities at the Land, or (ii) the date Tenant commences the 
construction or installation of the Energy Storage System at the Land; provided however, the Construction 
Commencement Date shall not be deemed to have occurred by virtue of any testing conducted by Tenant 
on the Land, minimal site clearing to support such testing, or by virtue of Tenant installing access routes or 
roads on the Land.  Once the Construction Commencement Date is ascertained, the parties agree to execute 
a memorandum or other writing confirming the Construction Commencement Date. 

(c) Landlord’s Rights Prior to Construction Commencement Date. During the period between 
the Effective Date and the Construction Commencement Date, Landlord shall continue to have full use and 
control of the Land, subject to Tenant’s access and inspection rights set forth in Section 3(a) and Section 4 
of this Lease.  On and after the Construction Commencement Date, Landlord (and any other party claiming, 
by, through or under Landlord) shall not have full use and control rights of the Land. 

 4. Lease Contingencies and Tenant’s Due Diligence.  

 (a) Lease Contingencies.  Tenant’s obligation to perform hereunder shall be subject to the 
satisfaction of the following contingencies (collectively the “Contingencies”):  (i) Tenant obtaining all 
necessary permits and approvals from federal, state and local governmental authorities required by Tenant 
for its Intended Use and to construct and operate its Battery System at the Land; (ii) Tenant’s review and 
approval of title and survey matters with respect to the Land, the environmental, geological, geotechnical, 
and physical condition of the Land; (iii) Tenant obtaining all necessary easements for its Intended Use; (iv) 
Tenant deciding to lease the Land in lieu of other sites being considered by Tenant prior to the expiration 
date of the Due Diligence Period; and (v) Tenant’s review and approval of any other matters that Tenant 
deems relevant to determining whether Tenant’s leasing of the Land is economically and otherwise feasible. 
Landlord, at no cost to Landlord, agrees to sign any applications or other documents (that require signature 
by the fee owner of the Land), and to take all such other actions, as are reasonably required to allow Tenant 
to, at Tenant’s expense, obtain any re-zonings, variances, permits or other approvals required by Tenant for 
the Intended Use.  If Tenant is unable to satisfy the Contingencies to Tenant’s satisfaction prior to the 
expiration date of the Due Diligence Period, or if Tenant otherwise determines that Tenant’s leasing of the 
Land is not feasible or desirable for any reason whatsoever, Tenant may terminate this Lease by giving 
written notice to Landlord prior to the expiration date of the Due Diligence Period.  In addition, the Tenant’s 
right to terminate this Lease pursuant to this Section 4(a) shall expire on the Construction Commencement 
Date and is further subject to the conditions specified in Section 9 of this Lease.   

(b) Due Diligence, Inspections, Title and Survey. After the Effective Date, Tenant and its 
employees, agents, contractors, and authorized representations shall be entitled to enter the Land and 
conduct, at Tenant’s expense, inspections, investigations, studies, surveys, borings, sampling, and testing 
of the Land as Tenant deems necessary or desirable to determine if the Land is suitable for Tenant’s 
Intended Use (the “Due Diligence Work”). Within sixty (60) days after the Commencement Date, Tenant 
shall obtain a survey of the Land (the “Survey”).  The Survey’s legal description shall be deemed to be the 



 
3 

#5265596v5 

legal description of the Land for all purposes under this Lease.  After the Commencement Date, Tenant 
may, at Tenant’s expense, conduct the necessary survey(s) and submit the required filings to the local 
governmental authority having jurisdiction to subdivide the parcel(s) of Land comprising the Land so that 
the Land are contained within one or more tax parcels separate from other adjacent property owned by the 
Landlord.  

5. Rent.   
 
(a)  Due Diligence Period Rent. Tenant shall pay Landlord the sum of ___ and 00/100 Dollars 

($__.00) for each year of the Due Diligence Period.  Such payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of 
the Effective Date and each anniversary thereof while the Due Diligence Period is in effect. 

 
(b)  Construction Period Rent. Tenant shall pay Landlord the sum of ___ Dollars ($__.00) for 

each year of the Construction Period.  Such payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of the 
Construction Commencement Date and each anniversary thereof while the Construction Period is in effect. 

(c) Operating Period Rent. Tenant shall pay Landlord annual rent during the term in the sum 
of __($__.00) per acre of Land (prorated for any fractional acres), as evidenced and determined by the 
survey.  Such payment shall be made with (30) days of the Commercial Operation Date and each 
anniversary thereof while the Operating Period is in effect.   

 
(d)  Rent Increase. Commencing on the fifth (5th) annual anniversary date of the Commercial 

Operation Date, and on each fifth (5th) annual anniversary thereafter, the annual rent payable hereunder 
shall increase  over the annual rent payable for the prior year by ____ percent (%). 
  
 6. Utilities, Maintenance and Repairs.  Tenant shall pay for all utilities used at the Land by 
Tenant.  Tenant, at Tenant’s cost, shall be responsible for the repair and maintenance of the Energy Storage 
System and Tenant’s improvements on the Land. 
 
 7. Alterations.   
 
 (a) Tenant may, at its expense, make any alterations, additions, improvements and changes to 
the Land as it may deem necessary or desirable in the operation of its business or Energy Storage System, 
without the consent of Landlord, including without limitation any fencing, security devices and or signage 
desired by Tenant.  Any alteration, addition, improvement or change conducted by Tenant shall be done in 
compliance with applicable laws and requirements of governmental agencies having jurisdiction.  Landlord, 
at no cost to Landlord, agrees to sign any permit applications and to take all such other actions as are 
reasonably required to allow Tenant to accomplish any such alterations, additions, improvements and 
changes to the Land.  The Energy Storage System and any and all improvements constructed on the Land 
by or for Tenant, and all machinery, fixtures, trade fixtures, equipment, and other personal property installed 
or placed in the Land by or for Tenant, shall, regardless of the manner of attachment to the Land or the 
improvements thereon, be and at all times remain the property of Tenant, and shall be removable by it at 
any time and from time to time during the Term and at the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.  
In the event that Tenant removes any trees, crops or other vegetation from the Land during the Term, Tenant 
may sell and/or dispose of the same, and any revenues derived by Tenant from the sale of the same shall 
belong to Tenant. 
 
 (b) Within thirty (30) days after the Tenant notifies Landlord that the Construction 
Commencement Date has occurred, Landlord shall, at Landlord’s sole cost and expense, remove and 
dispose of all of the following from the Land: NONE 



 
4 

#5265596v5 

 8. Use and Occupancy.  Tenant shall be entitled to use the Land for the Intended Use. Tenant 
agrees that no unlawful use of the Land will be made. Landlord shall deliver sole and exclusive possession 
of the Land to the Tenant on the Construction Commencement Date.   
 
 9. Lease Termination and Surrender of Land.   
 
 (a) Termination Rights.  Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease as of the date that 
is thirty-six (36) months after the Commencement Date (the “Termination Date”) by providing Landlord 
with written notice of such termination on or before the date that is thirty (30) days prior to the Termination 
Date.  Upon a termination of this Lease by Tenant permitted hereunder, this Lease shall terminate and 
become null and void, and Tenant shall have no further obligations hereunder. 
 
 (b) Surrender of Land.  Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Tenant shall 
(i) return the Land to Landlord in substantially the same condition the same were in as of the Construction 
Commencement Date, to the extent practicable and reasonable wear and tear excepted; and if applicable, 
(ii) decommission and remove Tenant’s Energy Storage System and all improvements and equipment 
constructed or installed by Tenant on the Land.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall Tenant 
have any obligation to replace any crops or other vegetation damaged or removed by Tenant during the 
Term. 
 
 10. Insurance.  Tenant may, after the Energy Storage System and its improvements are 
completed, keep such improvements insured against loss or damage by fire, windstorm, earthquake and 
similar hazards.  Each party hereto shall keep in force, at its sole cost and expense, comprehensive 
commercial general liability insurance, with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000) per occurrence and not less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate, insuring such 
party, and the other party hereto as additional insured, against liability arising out of the use, occupancy or 
ownership of the Land.  Any provisions herein to the contrary notwithstanding, Landlord and Tenant 
mutually agree that, in respect to any loss which is covered by insurance then being carried by them 
respectively (or which would have been covered had such party maintained the insurance required 
hereunder), the one carrying such insurance and suffering said loss hereby releases the other of and from 
any and all claims with respect to such loss, and waives any rights of subrogation which might accrue to 
the carrier of such insurance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant may self-insure (either by use of 
deductibles or self-insured retention) the coverage required of Tenant hereunder and Tenant may satisfy its 
insurance obligations hereunder through a “blanket” policy or policies covering other properties or 
liabilities of Tenant. 

 11. Taxes.  Tenant shall be solely responsible for any ad valorem property taxes that are 
assessed against either the Land or Tenant’s personal property for periods falling within the Term.  Landlord 
and Tenant shall apportion taxes appropriately between the parties for any partial tax years falling within 
the Term.  Tenant shall also be responsible for any deferred property taxes (“Deferred Taxes”) due on the 
Land as a result of Tenant’s use of the Land for the Intended Use in accordance with applicable South 
Carolina laws.  However, in the event that Tenant’s use of the Land for the Intended Use triggers the 
obligation to pay any Deferred Taxes, or any other taxes, assessments, penalties, fees or interest, on any 
other property owned by Landlord (other than the Land), Landlord shall be solely responsible for paying 
the same.  In the event that the Land is a part of a larger tax parcel owned by Landlord, and Deferred Taxes 
become payable on the entire tax parcel as a result of Tenant’s use of the Land for the Intended Use, the 
Deferred Taxes shall be equitably apportioned as to Landlord and Tenant in a pro-rata manner such that 
Tenant is responsible only for such costs as they relate to the Land and Landlord is responsible for the 
remainder.  During the Term, Tenant, at its cost, shall have the right, at any time, to seek a reduction in the 
assessed valuation of the Land or to contest any taxes that are assessed against the Land (or any portion 



 
5 

#5265596v5 

thereof) or are to be paid by Tenant.  If Tenant seeks a reduction or contests any taxes, the failure on 
Tenant’s part to pay the taxes shall not constitute a default as long as Tenant complies with the provisions 
of this Section 11. 

 12. Fire or Other Casualty.  In the event that the Land, System, the improvements thereon, 
or any portions thereof, are damaged by fire or other casualty during the Term, and if in Tenant’s sole 
reasonable judgment, the damage is of such nature or extent that it is uneconomical to repair and restore 
the Land, the Battery System, or other improvements thereon, as the case may be, Tenant may terminate 
this Lease by written notice to Landlord.  The proceeds of any casualty insurance policy maintained by 
Tenant shall be payable to Tenant.   

 13. Condemnation.   

(a) If the whole of the Land shall be taken under the exercise of the power of eminent domain 
or by agreement with any condemnor in lieu of such taking, or such portion thereof that, in Tenant’s 
judgment, the remainder of the Land is not suitable for Tenant’s purposes (a “Total Taking”), then this 
Lease shall terminate as of the earlier of the date when title thereto vests in the condemnor or the date when 
possession thereof shall be delivered to the condemnor. 

(b) If a portion or portions of the Land shall be taken under the exercise of the power of eminent 
domain or by agreement with any condemnor in lieu of such taking, and such taking does not constitute a 
Total Taking (a “Partial Taking”), then this Lease, only as to the portion or portions so taken, shall terminate 
as of the date possession thereof shall be delivered to the condemnor, but otherwise this Lease shall remain 
in full force and effect.  If there is any Partial Taking, the Landlord and the Tenant shall both be entitled to 
participate in the condemnation proceeding to establish the condemnation award to the taking of each 
parties’ interest in the Land.  

(c) If Landlord and Tenant are unable to obtain separate awards with respect to their respective 
interests in the Land, then, the single award shall be fairly and equitably apportioned between Landlord and 
Tenant.  The portion of the award to be received by Landlord shall be based upon the taking of or injury to 
the fee simple estate in the Land, but not the improvements thereon.  The portion of the award to be received 
by Tenant shall be based upon the taking and reduction of Tenant’s leasehold estate created by this Lease, 
the taking of any improvements constructed or placed by Tenant on the Land, loss or interruption of 
Tenant’s business and the cost of any restoration or repair necessitated by such taking or condemnation.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, in the event Tenant has exercised its right to terminate this Lease 
under this Section 13, then Tenant shall first receive all condemnation proceeds until Tenant has received 
an amount equal to the appraised value of the improvements made to the Land by Tenant prior to the taking.  
Tenant shall have the right to participate, at its own expense, in any such condemnation proceedings and to 
negotiate on behalf of itself and Landlord in such proceedings; provided, however, Tenant shall not enter 
into any binding agreement or settlement without the prior consent of Landlord, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed by Landlord.  Landlord agrees to cooperate with Tenant and 
to execute such documentation as may be reasonably necessary to allow Tenant to participate in such 
condemnation proceedings.   

 14. Default.  If either party fails to comply with any term, covenant or condition of this Lease 
for a period of thirty (30) days after the defaulting party’s receipt of written notice from the other party of 
such failure (provided, however, if such failure cannot reasonably be cured within such thirty (30) day 
period, the defaulting party shall not be in default hereunder if it commences to cure within such thirty (30) 
day period and prosecutes the cure to completion in good faith and with due diligence), then the defaulting 
party shall be deemed in default hereunder and the other party may, at its option, may pursue any and all 



 
6 

#5265596v5 

remedies available to such party at law or in equity.  If there is a default by a party hereunder, the non-
defaulting party will take commercially reasonable measures to mitigate its damages. 
 
 15. Binding Effect; Assignment and Subletting.  This Lease shall be binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns.  
Tenant may assign this Lease, in whole or in part, or sublet the Land, or any part thereof, without Landlord’s 
prior consent, provided that any such assignee shall agree in writing to be bound by all of the terms and 
conditions of this Lease.  Landlord shall promptly notify Tenant in writing of the identity and address of 
any purchaser of Landlord’s fee interest in the Land and Landlord shall cause such purchaser to notify 
Tenant in writing of the address. 
 
 16. Mutual Indemnification.  Except to the extent caused by Landlord, Tenant agrees to 
indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from any and all damages or claims which Landlord may be 
compelled to pay on account of injuries to person or damages to property on the Land where the aforesaid 
injuries or damages are caused by Tenant (or Tenant’s employees, agents, or contractors) or Tenant’s breach 
of this Lease.   

 
 17. Quiet Enjoyment.  Landlord covenants and warrants that as long as Tenant is not in default 
under the terms and conditions of this Lease (beyond any applicable notice and cure periods), it will defend 
the right of possession to the Land in Tenant against all parties whomsoever for the entire Term hereof, and 
that Tenant shall have peaceable and quiet possession of the Land during the Term without hindrance or 
molestation.   

 
 18. Waiver.  The waiver by any party of any breach of any covenant or agreement herein 
contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other covenant 
or agreement herein contained.  

 
 19. Notices.  All notices, elections, demands, requests, payments and other communications 
hereunder shall be in writing, signed by the party making the same and shall be sent by certified or registered 
United States mail, postage prepaid, or by national overnight courier service which provides tracking and 
acknowledgement of receipts, addressed to: 

 
To Landlord:    Anderson County 
   Attn: _______________________ 

PO Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29622 

 
To Tenant:  Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 

Lease Administration 
550 S. Tryon Street, DEC 22A 
Charlotte, NC 28202 

 
or at such other address as may hereafter be designated in writing by either party hereto.  The time and date 
on which mail is postmarked shall be the time and date on which such communication is deemed to have 
been given.  
 

20. Memorandum of Lease.  Landlord and Tenant agree that this entire Lease shall not be 
recorded; provided however, promptly after the full execution of this Lease, Landlord and Tenant shall 
execute and record (at Tenant’s expense) a memorandum of this Lease in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds in the County in which the Land is located and which memorandum shall be in form sufficient to 



 
7 

#5265596v5 

publish notice and protect the validity of this Lease and Tenant’s rights hereunder. The lease memorandum 
shall specify the Commencement Date, the Expiration Date, the Renewal Terms granted herein, and such 
other provisions of this Lease as the parties mutually agree to incorporate therein. 
 

21. Governing Law.  This Lease shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws 
of the State of South Carolina. 
 

22. Invalidity of Particular Provisions.  If any term or provision of this Lease shall to any 
extent be ruled invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Lease 
shall not be affected thereby and each other term and provision of this Lease shall be valid and enforced to 
the fullest extent permitted by law.  
 

23. Subordination/Non-Disturbance Agreement.   
 

(a) Tenant’s obligation to subordinate its interests or attorn to any mortgagees or beneficiaries 
of mortgages or deeds of trust, or any other holders of liens on the Land or any portion thereof (each 
hereinafter a “Mortgagee”) that may heretofore or hereafter be placed against the Land by Landlord is 
conditioned upon the Mortgagee’s written agreement not to disturb Tenant’s possession, quiet enjoyment 
of the Land, and rights under this Lease so long as Tenant is not in default under the terms of this Lease 
(beyond any applicable notice and cure periods). Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 
provide to Tenant, on or before the expiration date of the Due Diligence Period and Construction 
Commencement Date, a subordination, non-disturbance, and attornment agreement from any and all current 
Mortgagees that is reasonably acceptable to Tenant.  With respect to any future Mortgagee of a mortgage 
or deed of trust, Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain from such future Mortgagee 
a subordination, non-disturbance, and attornment agreement that is reasonably acceptable to Tenant. 

   
(b) In the event any proceedings are brought for foreclosure of any mortgage or deed of trust 

on the Land, Tenant will attorn to the purchaser at a foreclosure sale on acquiring Landlord’s interest in the 
Land and the Lease, and any assignee thereof, and recognize such purchaser or assignee as Landlord under 
this Lease provided such purchaser or assignee agrees in writing not to disturb Tenant’s possession or rights 
under this Lease or in the Land, and to acknowledge all of Tenant’s rights hereunder, so long as Tenant is 
not in default under the terms of this Lease (beyond any applicable notice and cure periods).  Tenant agrees 
to give any such Mortgagee of whom Tenant has been informed in writing, written notice of any default or 
failure to perform by Landlord under this Lease.  Such Mortgagee shall have the same amount of time 
afforded to Landlord hereunder to cure any Landlord default; and Tenant shall accept such cure if timely 
and effectively made by such Mortgagee. 

 24. Warranties and Representations.   

(a) Tenant hereby agrees with, and warrants and represents to Landlord as follows: (i) Tenant 
is a duly formed and validly existing entity, incorporated or organized under the laws of the State in which 
it was incorporated or organized; (ii) Tenant has the full legal right, power and authority to execute this 
Lease and all documents now or hereafter to be executed by it pursuant to this Lease; (iii) this Lease has 
been duly authorized by all requisite entity action on the part of the Tenant, and is the valid and legally 
binding obligation of Tenant, enforceable in accordance with its terms; (iv) this Lease will not contravene 
any provision of Tenant’s organizational documents, any judgment, order, decree, writ or injunction issued 
against Tenant or any provision of any laws applicable to Tenant; and (v) the consummation of the 
transaction contemplated hereby will not result in a breach or constitute a default or event of default by 
Tenant under any agreement to which Tenant or any of its assets are subject or bound and will not result in 
a violation of any laws applicable to Tenant. 



 
8 

#5265596v5 

(b) Landlord hereby agrees with, and warrants and represents to Tenant as follows: (i) 
Landlord is the owner of the Land with full right and authority to execute this Lease and to lease the Land 
to Tenant in accordance with the terms hereof;  (ii) to the best of Landlord’s knowledge, the Land are free 
from environmental contamination of any sort, and the Land complies with any and all applicable laws, 
rules, and ordinances; (iii) Landlord has not received any notice of condemnation, zoning change or legal 
noncompliance relating to the Land; (iv) Landlord will not institute or consent to any rezoning of the Land 
during the Term, unless specifically requested by Tenant; (v) Landlord shall not further encumber the title 
to the Land after the Effective Date and during the Term; (vi) Landlord acknowledges that access to sunlight 
is essential to the value of the rights granted to Tenant under this Lease, and accordingly, Landlord shall 
not cause or permit any property owned or controlled by Landlord in the vicinity of the Land, or any 
activities, uses or improvements thereon, to impair Tenant’s use of the Land or the Energy Storage System 
thereon (for example, and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Landlord shall not cause or 
permit any cell towers, water towers, billboards, silos or any other structures to be placed or constructed 
thereon or permit the growth of any foliage that may obstruct the sunlight that otherwise would reach the 
Land, or that may cast shade or shadows upon the Land or any portion thereof); (vii) the Land is free from 
any recorded or unrecorded use or occupancy restrictions or declarations of restrictive covenants; (viii) 
Landlord has not and, to the best of Landlord’s knowledge, Landlord’s tenants or predecessors in title have 
not used, manufactured, stored or released petroleum products or hazardous substances on, in or under the 
Land; (ix) there are no service or maintenance contracts affecting the Land for which Tenant may be 
obligated or liable for; (x) there are no delinquent or outstanding assessments, liens, taxes, or other 
impositions levied or assessed against the Land; (xi) there is no pending or threatened lawsuit, claim, or 
legal proceeding against Landlord or the Land that could affect the Tenant’s rights under this Lease or the 
Landlord’s ability to perform Landlord’s obligations hereunder; (xii) except for this Lease, there are no 
leases, options to purchase, license agreements or other third party rights to use or possess the Land (or any 
portion thereof), whether written or oral, recorded or unrecorded; (xiii) Landlord is not in the hands of a 
receiver nor is an application for such a receiver pending; (xiv) Landlord has made no assignment for the 
benefit of creditors, nor filed, or had filed against it, any petition in bankruptcy; and (xv) within five (5) 
days after the Effective Date, Landlord shall provide copies of the following documents with respect to the 
Land in Landlord’s possession or reasonably available to Landlord:  (a) any notices of any statute or code 
violation; (b) to the extent assignable, copies of all documents, contracts, reports, communications, or other 
materials reasonably requested by Tenant, that relate to the design, development, construction, condition, 
ownership or operation of the Land; (c) surveys of the Land, engineering studies, soil suitability and 
compaction studies, environmental permits, local zoning permits, variances, waivers, or similar documents; 
(d) environmental reports and audits (including, but not limited to, all “Phase I” environmental site 
assessments and other environmental assessment and remediation reports, if any, pertaining to the Land); 
(e) liens, mortgages, deeds of trust, leases, easements, restrictions, covenants, and agreements applicable to 
the Land; and (f) title commitments, title policies, title opinions, and other title or survey information 
relating to the Land.  Landlord shall have a continuing obligation to provide to Tenant the documents, if 
any, referenced in subparts (a) through (f) above, which may come into Landlord’s possession, or become 
available to Landlord, during the Due Diligence Period.  

(c) Tenant shall retain title to and be the legal and beneficial owner of the Energy Storage 
System at all times.  Landlord shall provide timely notice of Tenant’s title and sole ownership of the Energy 
Storage System to all persons that have, or may come to have, an interest in or lien upon the real property 
comprising the Land.  Tenant shall be the exclusive owner of the electricity stored by the Energy Storage 
System and the Environmental Attributes (as hereinafter defined) and Environmental Incentives (as 
hereinafter defined) thereof.  “Environmental Attributes” means the characteristics of electric power 
generation at the Energy Storage System that have intrinsic value, separate and apart from the generated 
energy, arising from the perceived environmental benefits of the Energy Storage System or energy 
generated at the Energy Storage System, including but not limited to all environmental and other attributes 



 
9 

#5265596v5 

that differentiate the Energy Storage System or energy generated at the Energy Storage System from energy 
generated by fossil-fuel based generation units, fuels or resources, characteristics of the Energy Storage 
System that may result in the avoidance of environmental impacts on air, soil or water, such as the absence 
of emission of any oxides of nitrogen, sulfur or carbon or of mercury, or other gas or chemical, soot, 
particulate matter or other substances attributable to the Energy Storage System or the compliance of the 
Energy Storage System or energy generated at the Energy Storage System with the law, rules and standards 
of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (the “UNFCCC”) or the Kyoto Protocol 
to the UNFCCC or any successor laws, rules or standards or crediting “early action” with a view thereto, 
or laws or regulations involving or administered by the Environmental Protection Agency or successor 
administration or any state or federal entity having jurisdiction over a program involving transferability of 
rights arising from Environmental Attributes.  Without limiting the forgoing, “Environmental Attributes” 
includes green tags, renewable energy credits, tradable renewable certificates, portfolio energy credits, the 
right to apply for (and entitlement to receive) incentives under any demand-side management or energy 
efficiency programs offered by a utility company, a third-party provider, or other incentive programs 
offered by the state and the right to claim federal income tax credits, if applicable.  “Environmental 
Incentives” means all rights, credits (including tax credits), rebates, benefits, reductions, offsets, and 
allowances and entitlements of any kind, howsoever entitled or named (including carbon credits and 
allowances), whether arising under federal, state or local law, international treaty, trade association 
membership or the like, arising from the Environmental Attributes of the Energy Storage System or the 
energy generated at the Energy Storage System or otherwise from the development or installation of the 
Energy Storage System or the production, sale, purchase, consumption or use of the energy generated at 
the Energy Storage System. 

 25. Brokerage Commission.  Neither Landlord nor Tenant knows of any real estate brokers 
or agents who are or may be entitled to any commission or finder’s fee in connection with this Lease.  Each 
party hereto agrees to indemnify and hold the other party harmless from and against any and all claims, 
demands, losses, liabilities, lawsuits, judgments, costs and expenses (including without limitation, fees for 
legal counsel and costs) with respect to any leasing commission or equivalent compensation alleged to be 
owing on account of such party’s discussions, negotiations and/or dealings with any real estate broker or 
agent. 

 26. Easements.  Landlord agrees to reasonably cooperate with Tenant in granting easements 
and rights of way on adjacent property owned by Landlord necessary to serve the Land for the Tenant’s 
Intended Use.  Landlord covenants and agrees that Landlord shall, upon the request of Tenant, join in the 
execution of any such easement.  Tenant is hereby authorized to grant such easements across, under and 
over the Land as are necessary for rights of way, ingress and egress, and for the installation, construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of utility lines and related facilities serving the Land, 
including without limitation any such easements required to connect the Land to a receiver of electric power 
generated at the Land. 

 27. Access.  Tenant, and Tenant’s employees, agents, contractors, guests, subtenants and 
designees shall have access to the Land at all times after the Effective Date and during the Term.  On and 
after the Construction Commencement Date, neither Landlord nor any agent of Landlord shall, without a 
Tenant representative, enter upon any portion of the Land. 

 28. Confidentiality. Landlord acknowledges that Landlord may become privy to confidential 
information of Tenant, in addition to information regarding the terms of this Lease.  Landlord therefore 
agrees to take all steps to ensure that any information with regard to Tenant, Tenant’s Intended Use of the 
Land (and improvements thereon) and/or this Lease, shall remain confidential and shall not be disclosed or 
revealed to outside sources by Landlord or by its employees, officers, agents, counsel, accountants or 



 
10 

#5265596v5 

representatives, except as otherwise required by law or court order.  The terms of this Section 28 shall 
survive the expiration or any sooner termination of this Lease. 

 29. Estoppel.  Within fifteen (15) business days after written request therefor by Tenant, 
Landlord shall deliver a certificate to Tenant, Tenant’s lender (if applicable) and/or any proposed assignee 
of Tenant, in a commercially reasonable form, setting forth the terms of this Lease, the absence of default 
hereunder, and such other reasonable terms as may be requested by Tenant or by such lender or assignee.  
If the Landlord fails to respond within such fifteen (15) business day period, then, in addition to such failure 
constituting an event of default, all matters set forth in the estoppel certificate shall be deemed to be true, 
accurate and complete. 

 30. Leasehold Mortgages.  Tenant and every successor and assign of Tenant is hereby given 
the right by Landlord, without Landlord’s consent, to mortgage its interest in this Lease and assign its 
interest in this Lease as collateral security for such mortgage.  If Tenant and/or Tenant’s successors and 
assigns shall mortgage all or part of its interest in this Lease and if Tenant or the holder of such mortgage 
shall send to Landlord a true copy thereof together with written notice specifying the name and address of 
the mortgagee and the pertinent recording data with respect to such mortgage, Landlord agrees that so long 
as the leasehold mortgage remains unsatisfied of record or until written notice of satisfaction is given by 
the holder to Landlord, the following provisions shall apply: 

(a) Landlord shall, upon serving Tenant with any notice of default, simultaneously serve a 
copy of such notice upon the holder of the leasehold mortgage.  The leasehold mortgagee shall have the 
same period, after service of such notice upon it, to remedy or cause to be remedied the defaults complained 
of, and Landlord shall accept such leasehold mortgagee’s acts if they had been performed by Tenant. 

(b) Landlord agrees that in the event of termination of this Lease by reason of any default by 
Tenant, that Landlord will enter into a new lease for the Land with the leasehold mortgagee or its nominee 
for the remainder of the Term effective as of the date of such termination, at the rent and other charges, and 
upon the terms, provisions, covenants and agreement contained in this Lease, provided: 

(i)  the mortgagee or its nominee shall pay to Landlord, at the time of execution and 
delivery of the new lease, any and all sums which would then be due pursuant to this Lease but for 
such termination; and 

(ii) the mortgagee or its nominee shall perform and observe all covenants in this Lease 
to be performed by Tenant and shall further remedy any other conditions which Tenant was 
obligated to perform under the terms of this Lease. 

(c) Landlord shall, upon request, execute, acknowledge and deliver to each leasehold 
mortgagee an agreement prepared at the sole cost and expense of Tenant, in form satisfactory to the 
leasehold mortgagee and to Landlord, between Landlord, Tenant and the leasehold mortgagee confirming 
the provisions of this Section 30. 

The term “mortgage,” as used in this Section 30, shall include mortgages, deeds of trust and/or whatever 
security instruments are used in the State in which the Land are located from time to time, as well as 
financing statements, security agreements and other documentation required pursuant to the Uniform 
Commercial Code. 

 31. Bankruptcy.  In the event (i) the Land or any rights therein shall be levied on by execution 
or other process of law by a creditor of either party, (ii) if either party shall be adjudged bankrupt or 



 
11 

#5265596v5 

insolvent, (iii) if any party has a petition in bankruptcy filed against it, and such petition is not dismissed 
within ninety (90) days after the filing thereof, (iv) if any receiver shall be appointed for the business and 
property of either party, or (v) if any assignment shall be made of either party’s property for the benefit of 
creditors, thereby diminishing any right or privilege granted by this Lease to the other party, then the other 
party may terminate this Lease forthwith and otherwise exercise any other remedy it may have at law or 
equity or under this Lease. 

 32. Nature and Extent of Agreement/Amendments.  This Lease contains the complete 
agreement of the parties regarding the terms and conditions of the lease of the Land, and there are no oral 
or written conditions, terms, understandings or other agreements pertaining thereto which have not been 
incorporated herein.  This Lease creates only the relationship of landlord and tenant between the parties as 
to the Land; and nothing in this Lease shall in any way be construed to impose upon either party any 
obligations or restrictions not expressly set forth in this Lease.  No amendment or modification of this Lease 
shall be binding unless in writing and duly executed by both parties. 

 33. Counterparts.  This Lease may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original once executed and delivered.  

 

 [REMAINDER OF PAGE BLANK.  SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW.] 

  



 
12 

#5265596v5 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Lease by authority duly 
given, as of the day and year first above written. 

 

LANDLORD: 

 
By:        
 
Name:   __________________________     

 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF      
 

I, ________________________________, a Notary Public for _____________ County, South 
Carolina, certify that ______________________________, either being personally known to me or proven 
by satisfactory evidence, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the voluntary due 
execution of the foregoing instrument.   

WITNESS my hand and official stamp or seal this ______ day of __________, 20___. 

 
             
      Notary Public 
      Printed/Typed Name:      
 
 
My Commission Expires:      
 
[AFFIX NOTARIAL STAMP OR SEAL] 
 



 
13 

#5265596v5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Lease by authority duly 
given, as of the day and year first above written. 

 

TENANT: 

DUKE ENERGY, LLC 

 
By:        

       
      Name: __________________________ 

 
Title: ___________________________ 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF      
 

I, ________________________________, a Notary Public for _____________ County, North 
Carolina, certify that _____________________, either being personally known to me or proven by 
satisfactory evidence, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he/she is 
_______________________, of DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability 
company, and that he/she, as ____________________________, being authorized to do so, voluntarily 
executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of the limited liability company in the capacity indicated.   

WITNESS my hand and official stamp or seal this ______ day of __________, 20___. 

 
             
      Notary Public 
      Printed/Typed Name:      
 
 
My Commission Expires:      
 
[AFFIX NOTARIAL STAMP OR SEAL] 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-016 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED 
AT 1299 THREE AND TWENTY ROAD, EASLEY, SOUTH CAROLINA (TMS NO. 163-
00-09-008) TO THE THREE AND TWENTY FIRE DEPARTMENT TRUSTEES; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO; 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County currently owns a tract of real property (the “Property”) 

located at 1299 Three and Twenty Road, Easley, South Carolina and further identified by Tax Map 

Number 163-00-09-008; 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County acquired the Property by Deed from the Trustees for the 

Three and Twenty Grange Number 483 dated October 13, 1975 and recorded in the Register of 

Deeds office in Book 18-B at page 202; 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County previously used the Property as a solid waste convenience 

center and ceased using the property on or about June 25, 2015 when the Slabtown convenience 

center was opened. 

 WHEREAS, the Three and Twenty Fire Department is located adjacent to the Property 

and desires to own the Property and utilize it as a training site; 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina, acting by and through its County Council, 

is authorized under Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, as amended, to lease, sell, or 

otherwise dispose of real and personal property. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting 

duly assembled that: 

  1. The Anderson County Council hereby approves the transfer of the real 

property located at 1299 Three and Twenty Road, Easley, South Carolina, TMS No.: 163-00-09-

008 to the Three and Twenty Fire Department for use as a training site.  The Chairman of County 

Council and the County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, 



acknowledge, and deliver all documents in the name of and on behalf of the County to carry out 

the transaction contemplated by this Ordinance, including without limitation deeds, affidavits, 

settlement statements, and other such documents necessary and appropriate to the transfer of the 

property. 

 2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 

remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 

rescinded. 

 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 

Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

 
ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 

Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
 
 

1st  Reading:__________________ 

2
nd

Reading:___________________ 

3
rd Reading:  _________________ 

 
Public Hearing: ________________ 
 

 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-017 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 204 WEST POPLAR STREET, IVA, SOUTH CAROLINA 
(TMS NO. 133-04-01-003); 57 OAK STREET, IVA, SOUTH CAROLINA (TMS 133-02-06-
003); AND 717 CENTRAL STREET, IVA, SOUTH CAROLINA (TMS 134-00-06-017) TO 
THE TOWN OF IVA; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO; 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-018 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE APPROVAL FOR ANDERSON COUNTY TO GRANT 
A PERPETUAL AND NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT UNTO DUKE ENERGY 
CAROLINAS, LLC UPON A PORTION OF THE REAL PROPERTY BEING PARCEL A, 
0.192 ACRES AND PARCEL B, 2.96 ACRES, AS RECORDED IN PLAT SLIDE 1273, 
PAGES 5 AND 6, ANDERSON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS FOR ELECTRIC CAR 
CHARGING STATIONS WITHIN THE CITY OF BELTON; AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO. (TITLE ONLY)  

 












































































	Agenda CCM April 19, 2022
	2a R2022-024 250 Committee
	2b R2022-025 Split Creek Farm
	2c R2022-026 Jacky Hunter
	3 Minutes CCM April 5, 2022
	5a 2022-004 Amend 38-311(c)
	5b 2022-009 River Oaks Special Tax District
	5c 2022-011 Project Yell
	6a 2022-008 Evergreen Road
	6b 2022-013 Amend Chapter 38
	6c 2022-014 Ground Lease Agreement
	7a 2022-016 Transfer of real property Three & Twenty Fire Dept.
	7b 2022-017 Transfer of real properties TITLE ONLY
	7c 2022-018 Easement TITLE ONLY
	9a Road Acceptance Barrington Creek
	11a Request Split Creek Farm
	11b Request Rebuild Upstate 
	11c Request The Zone Service
	12a Budget Transfers
	12b Paving
	12c Special Projects



